
COUNCIL
AGENDA

Venue: The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Monday, 16th December, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby           Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Minutes of the Ordinary meeting held on 9 September 2019 and the 
Special meetings held on 30 September 2019 & 19 November 2019 

1 - 30

3. Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

4. Chair's Announcements 

5. Petitions 

6. Questions from Members of the Public 

To receive questions from members of the public.  Maximum time allowed 
30 minutes.  Questions must be submitted to the Head of Governance and 
Commercial  at least three working days prior to the meeting.

7. Questions by Members 

a) Written questions to the Mayor or any other Member of the Council 
in relation to content of any recommendations or reports before 
the Council.  Questions must be submitted in writing to the Head or 
Governance and Commercial at least three working days prior to the 
meeting. (45 minutes allowed) – Procedure Rule 11.2.

b) Oral questions to the Mayor on any matter where the Council has 
powers or duties or which affects the Borough.  (60 minutes allowed 
plus any unused time from (a) above) – Procedure Rule 11.1.

8. Mayor's Executive Report 31 - 54

9. Report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 55 - 58

10. Amendments to Committee memberships and Outside Bodies 59 - 60

Public Document Pack



11. Update on Copeland Borough Council's Development of a Business Case 
for Whitehaven Against the Future High Streets Fund 

61 - 72

12. Corporate Strategy 2020-2024 73 - 104

13. Planning Panel and Licensing Committee Protocol 105 - 120

EXEMPT INFORMATION
The Chairman to move:
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the following items on grounds that, if they were 
present, there could be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act.

14. The Copeland Centre Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Scheme 121 - 194

15. Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

The next meeting of Council will be held on Monday 10th February 2020 at 
2.00pm in the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven, CA28 7SJ.

Membership: Councillor Joan Hully (Chair), Mike Starkie (Directly Elected Mayor), 
Councillors David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, Graham Calvin, Sean Cullen, 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, 
Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Tom Higgins, Linda Jones-Bulman, John Kane, 
Charles Maudling (Deputy Chair), Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, Sam Meteer, 
Graham Minshaw, David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, 
Russell Studholme, Peter Tyson, Carl Walmsley, Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and 
Felicity Wilson.

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 9 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present: Councillor Joan Hully (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors  David Banks, 
Hugh Branney, Graham Calvin, James Date, Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, 
Fred Gleaves, Mike Hawkins, Linda Jones-Bulman, John Kane, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, 
Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, 
Andy Pratt, Peter Tyson, Carl Walmsley, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Julie Betteridge (Director of Growth and Inclusive 
Communities), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 
(Monitoring Officer)), Steven Brown (Director of Financial Resources), Stephanie Shaw 
(Electoral and Democratic Services Manager), Mike Graham (Political Advisor), Clive 
Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer), Lesley Taylor (PA to the Mayor), Michaela Peet 
(Assistant Solicitor), James Young (Scrutiny Officer), Christina Cremins (Senior 
Communications and Engagement Officer) and Nick Hayhurst (Planning Development 
Manager) (for Agenda Items 1 to 12 only).

C 19/26 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from:

Councillors: Jackie Bowman, Jeffrey Hailes, Tom Higgins, Charles Maudling, Russell Studholme 
and Eileen Weir.

Officers: Clinton Boyce (Solicitor).

C 19/27 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2019 be signed by the Chair as 
a correct record.

C 19/28 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

Councillor Steven Morgan declared a non-pecuniary interest in the Agenda due to being 
Chairman of Time for Change and further stated that he would be resigning from that role in 
October.

C 19/29 Chairman's Announcements 

The Chair made the following announcements:

“Members are reminded that if they are going on holiday or will be unavailable, please let 
Democratic Services know.

At the request of Members, a copy of the current Constitution is on the table for each 
Councillor. This should be used when consideration is being given to reviewing sections of the 
Constitution. Please take this with you at the end of the meeting.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



IT are working hard to get members iPads set up, however, the process is taking much longer 
than anyone anticipated. We will continue to keep you updated and thank you all for your 
patience. 

From 30th September there will be a change to the parking arrangements at the Copeland 
Centre. Each Member will receive a plastic Parking disc to display on their windscreen and will 
be able to park in bays 72 to 78 on a first come, first served basis when attending meetings. 
Further details will be provided when the discs are given out.

I was invited to and attended the Citizen Advice Bureau’s 80th Anniversary celebration.”

C 19/30 Petitions 

It was noted that no petitions had been received from members of the public.

C 19/31 Questions from Members of the Public 

The following question was asked by Mr David Billing: -

“As you will be aware, Millom Recreation Centre has now served Millom for nearly 30 years. 
The asset is owned by the Council and operated by a Management team comprising mainly 
Millom residents who provide their services as volunteers.
 
The facility has gone from strength to strength and has now out grown the current building 
space largely due to the thriving gymnastics participation.
 
Broadly the local catchment are for Millom is of the order of 8,000 people.
 
The Council (CBC) currently support the annual operation with a sum of £15k.  This has 
broadly been the degree of support for the whole lifetime of the facility.
 
Could you state what are the other recreational facilities in the Borough  (eg Whitehaven 
Sports Centre, Hensigham Swimming Pool etc  )  and give a broad outline how these facilities 
are funded and the individual annual operational costs.(supported by the Borough).
  
Could you comment as to whether there is a reasonable degree of parity in support for each 
of these facilities and where there is a significant disparity resolve to correct it.”

Councillor Gwynneth Everett responded:
“The Council recognises and welcomes the great work of the Millom Recreation Centre in 
supporting and improving the health and wellbeing of Copeland residents in the south of our 
borough.  We receive annual reports on the outcomes from Millom Recs work and recognise 
the strong delivery against our annual grant.

The Council has maintained a grant to the Millom Recreation Centre over many years which is 
currently £15,000 per year.   This has been kept at this figure for the past three years having 
previously been £7,790 in 2012/13 and £11,447 in 2015/16.     

Page 2



Alongside this, the Council provides a peppercorn lease to the Centre, the last lease term 
agreed in August 2014.   This was for a 30-year term to assist the Centre Management 
Committee in applying for grants for their development plans.

The Council has a leisure contract with Greenwich Leisure Ltd, which began in 2006 and is due 
to finish on 31st March 2021.   Three of our assets are included within this contract: 
Whitehaven Sports Centre, Copeland Pool and Fitness Centre and Cleator Moor Activity 
Centre.   The Council has a contract management fee as part of the contract which has been 
negotiated to less than half its original value as part of our contract negotiations.  These 
negotiations being held at periods over the past six years in line with the reduction in our core 
funding.  This contract fee ensures services are available to residents throughout the borough 
but mostly from the North Copeland area where around 75% of our residents live.  

The question asks for a broad outline of how these facilities are funded.  The contract is 
resourced through external funding, no Council resources are used except staff time.   The 
contract is targeted to enable access from our low income families and residents through the 
BeActivePlus card.  Our contractors have engaged with outreach activity, our health and 
wellbeing priorities across the borough and been able to offer information and advice to a 
range of voluntary and community groups in the borough.    

The contract is commercially confidential in terms of operational figures.    We nominate 
Council Members to the Copeland Board of GLL who oversee the contract.  This community 
membership board meets quarterly and receives performance and monitoring information 
and informs strategy and developments.

We have protected our commitment to Millom Recreation Centre through the annual grant 
and the uplift over the past three years alongside a less than best value arrangement on the 
Community Asset Lease of 30 years to ensure community benefit from the use of the building.

Mr Billing a member of the Millom Recreation Centre Management team asked a 
Supplementary Question:  
The question still stands. The money provided as the Service Level Agreement £15k minus £5k 
for rates.  No comparison to others we provide for in the borough, can you look at that 
please.  

The Portfolio Holder undertook to send a written response to Mr Billing with a copy to 
Director Marion Giles of the Millom Recreation Centre Management Team. 

C 19/32 Questions by Members 

a) Written Questions 

Councillor Eileen Weir had submitted the following question to the Mayor: -

"Peter McCall, the Police and Crime Commissioner for the County, has signed off on funding 
for the second phase of adding 80 extra cameras to local communities…
1) Has Copeland Borough Council applied to be included in this County distribution of new 

CCTV cameras?
In March 2014, as County Councillor for Bransty, I participated in the decision for CCTV 
cameras to be installed in Whitehaven.

Page 3



Especially the large camera pole outside Whittles furniture store, enabling coverage 
opposite the John Paul Jones pub at the harbour front and also along Tangier Street.
The fact that the camera was installed opposite the John Paul Jones pub, was a 
contributory factor in Police being able to identify criminal activity in this area.
We now are experiencing another wave of disorderly behaviour in this area, which is 
likely to be exacerbated due to the recent successful application of another drinking 
establishment on the corner of King Street, previously a betting shop.

2) Would it be possible, if an application is being made, for additional cameras in 
Whitehaven, that the existing camera on the corner of Duke Street/Tangier Street be 
extended by cable to cover Duke Street up to the junction of Joe Bananas/Church Street, 
with an additional extension to navigate the speeding activity from the said junction, 
along the remainder of Duke Street before the turn into Scotch Street.

3) Or – Would it be necessary to have a separate speeding camera to cover the 
unmonitored speed track which Duke Street is becoming late at night, when there are no 
police patrols?

4) Can we work in unison with Cumbria County Council in order to find a solution to this 
exceptionally dangerous section of Whitehaven which it is becoming a racing track in the 
evenings to take advantage of these additional cameras on offer?

The funding which the Police Commissioner has identified, which he intends to make available 
to assist local councils, is likely to be in areas currently without CCTV coverage.
There is an argument to be made however, due to the increase in night life drinking 
businesses, within the said area, that it would also assist police to identify missing persons, 
who use crowd protection at weekends, in Whitehaven, to hide their identity. ”

In response, it was stated that as Councillor Wier was not present, the written reply that was 
available would be circulated outside of the meeting.

Councillor Jackie Bowman’s had submitted the following question to the Mayor: -

"On Wednesday 21st August l attended a meeting as a member of the Copeland Disability 
Forum. 
It was brought to my attention by the Deputy Chair Mrs Linda Wilson that the comments 
requested in consultation for the Accessible Information Policy would appear to have been at 
the very least overlooked or at worst omitted. 
Mrs Wilson is also deeply involved with the RNIB being visually impaired. This means she has 
first hand knowledge of the issues involved.

For this Council to be totally accessible to our constituents l feel this Policy should be revisited 
with a view to dealing with these discrepancies.

I was also very disappointed to learn that Mrs Wilson had emailed Julie Betteridge, with a cc 
to Mayor Starkie with regards to this problem on 27 July 2019 and that to date she has not 
had an acknowledgement let alone a reply.

To paraphrase Mrs Wilson, this Council fails to meet the needs of ALL people who access 
Council documents which in my opinion breaches our duty of equality.

I look forward to your response”

Page 4



In response, The Head of Paid Service stated:- 

“It’s very important to say we take equalities very seriously, we have a very strong 
relationship both with Copeland Disability Forum and the RNIB, we have strong operational 
and strategic relationships with them.

I think its therefore quite poor form that when one e-mail is missed by way of response the 
member of staff is then outed in the Full Council arena. This is not necessarily representative 
of our values.  That officer wasn’t given any opportunity to follow up on an e-mail which 
hadn’t arrived in the inbox – we have had an IT check on that. 

Since this question came in, the Officer has been in full contact with Mrs Wilson, our partner 
who we have worked with for a number of years.  We also confirmed with the Head of 
Scrutiny at the time when the documentation was produced.

All points discussed and scrutinised, and incorporated into our policy.  Many amendments to 
our documentation were made as a result of comments from Mrs Wilson.

Mrs Wilson fully engaged with us.  We will refer back to OSC if Mrs Wilson raises any further 
points.

Note: Councillor Joan Hully declared an interest at this point due to being visually impaired 
and knowing Mrs Wilson.

b) Oral Questions 

Question from Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman
With the recent closure of Mind in West Cumbria, what are the council doing to support our 
residents with mental ill health?

In response the Mayor said: “We’ve come to Millom tonight and one of the residents has 
asked about Admiral Nurses and the work they do in mental health.  We take a real interest in 
all areas involving social issues and have various programmes running.  I am aware of what is 
happening with MIND and will be looking at putting funding programmes together.  Looking 
at the great work Admiral Nurses do, we will follow that up to see if we can work with them 
to help people in that situation. It will be a priority.”

Note: Councillor Joan Hully declared an interest at this point due to running a group that 
helps people with mental health issues and also had worked in mental health for a long time.

Note: Councillor Mike Hawkins declared an interest due to working for a mental health 
charity.

The Mayor continued, that he recognised the work Councillor Jones-Bulman did in the 
community and would welcome her help and input.

Question from Councillor Doug Wilson:  Regarding the Towns Fund, are any plans for Millom 
and Cleator Moor to be involved in the decision making and the structural processes that will 
be needed to manage the fund? 

Page 5



In response the Mayor said “there are 100 towns across the country selected for the Stronger 
Town Fund and earlier in the year I spoke about the Future High Street Fund.  I have several 
meetings putting the case for Copeland forward.  Whitehaven came through in the Future 
High Street Fund and we’ve just submitted to Government last week the indicative value of 
that bid, which was in the region of about £21 million.  

Cleator Moor and Millom, I am delighted that this could be up to £25 million.  It is still very 
early stages. We are understanding the process and will keep people involved every step of 
the way.  

We will take on board all suggestions.”

Councillor Doug Wilson thanked the Mayor and all those involved in putting the bid together. 

Note:  At this point Councillor Joan Hully declared an interest due to being town councillor for 
Cleator Moor.

Question from Councillor AndyPratt:  Thank you for the response I received regarding the five 
year land supply.  The response  was wishy-washy we still have no fine line of when we will 
get it.  What is the hold up?

My second question is regarding the Beacon Portal, Councillor Everett was going to provide 
me with information what we are doing to promote the best use of the facility, but that 
information hasn’t come through yet.
 
In response Councillor Michael McVeigh stated that regarding the five year land supply, a 
briefing had been arranged for 16th September by Chris Hoban to which all members are 
invited.

Question from Councillor Sam Pollen: Regarding the Stronger Towns Fund, he welcomed the 
news for Millom and Cleator Moor, is there any fantastic news for Egremont?  

The Mayor responded:  Stronger Towns Fund and High Street Fund are Government 
initiatives.  We have seen what has happened in Whitehaven, Cleator Moor and Millom.  The 
funding in Egremont for the environmental scheme has been raised to £10 million.  The work 
has started on that programme addressing a 40 year old issue of flooding.  Town Centre 
Regeneration is a key theme of what we are trying to do in this authority since I got elected.  
There are various ways we are looking to achieve funding, now instead of sharing any other 
funding across the four towns we have ticked the boxes for Whitehaven, Millom and Cleator 
Moor and I’m confident there will be good news for Egremont soon.  

I know as well as anyone what Egremont needs and I’m committed during the term of this 
council that we will deliver big style in Egremont as well as all the other towns. 

Question from Councillor Sam Pollen: regarding the Crab Fair, there are problems with 
buildings on the Main Street.  There is temporary scaffold up, the barriers on the walkways 
are unstable and cause hazards to the public and traffic.  Can the Mayor speak to Cumbria 

Page 6



County Council and get stable, suitable barriers in place?  We appreciate the support we are 
getting from Copeland Council for the event.

Response Mayor:  Already spoken to Cumbria County Council and asked for those barriers to 
be put in place 

The Mayor offered a meeting with all Egremont councillors to update with progress regarding 
the building on the Main Street.  This is being addressed from several different angles.

Question from Councillor Felicity Wilson:  Regarding the Mr Billing question, At the August 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, we had a discussion about recreational provision.  I did ask 
if we could analyse the leisure provision throughout Copeland, to get an understanding of 
what our Council can do to help Town and Parish Councils.  We are going to put on our task 
and finish programme to look at and allow members of the public to take part.  I just wanted 
to bring you up to date with that Chair.

In response the Mayor said that a Sports and Leisure Strategy is imminent and will go to 
tender in the next few days.  Once we have that Sports Strategy, it puts us in a far better place 
to support the initiatives we have planned.  

Question from Councillor Sam Meteer: We have received a copy of the old Constitution on 
the table tonight, it would be better if we had a copy of the new one.

In response, the Monitoring Officer stated that we are currently working on updating the 
constitution.  We agreed that all members would have a copy of the current constitution.  
Several member had asked for a copy. When the new constitution updates are done you will 
receive a new one.

Councillor Joan Hully asked if we have a constitution Working Group and suggested we do 
have one.

C 19/33 Mayor's Executive Report 

In asking the Mayor, Mike Starkie to introduce his Executive Report, Members were advised 
that questions would be taken at the end of each portfolio report.  

The Mayor then made the following statement:
High Street Fund - The town deals are designed to promote investment into things like 
transport, digital, skills and culture and help to transform towns.  Boost productivity and raise 
living standards.  When you have towns the size of Millom and Cleator Moor, £25 million is 
going to make a big difference and have a real significant impact.  Town Centre Regeneration 
has been a key pillar of our Corporate Strategy for the past four years.  I was thrilled when the 
news came in.  Some of things we have done at local level like the Pride of Place Scheme 
which has kicked the whole thing going and the investment in street cleaning has provided a 
platform of an authority that has got a clear plan.  They have bought into what we are trying 
to do and are now providing the investment to do it.

We have the masterplans for all the towns and there is an awful lot of work gone into this.  
We now have the funds to reach our aspirations and deliver on those.  We need to 
understand the content of the offer that the Government is making.  High Street Fund detail 

Page 7



came through quickly and would expect the same with this funding. What I can say with some 
confidence is that this is not the last good announcement – there is more to come and we 
won’t have to wait long for the next one.  We have a real opportunity to scale the heights.  
Cleator Moor and Millom feel they have been forgotten, this will change all this and for the 
better.

Communication Team, have been nominated for an award for the recycling campaign.  The 
communications team do a fantastic job.

Questions were then invited on the Mayor’s portfolio

Question Cllr Pratt:  Latest News about the mine 

Response Mayor:  I have the letter from West Cumbria Mining but it is marked private and 
confidential. Therefore, I would need permission to read it out but it is very positive in terms 
of the progress.  

What is holding it up is the call in by Tim Farron MP for South Lakes.

Question from Councillor Doug Wilson:  In relation to Connecting Cumbria and the work Eric 
Barker has done in relation to Silecroft Café and the leisure area around there.  I understand 
this has progressed to where the project is about to be delivered and wondered if there was 
any information from the Mayor re completion and long term delivery.

Response from the Mayor: It’s part of the coastal communities work.  We got £1.1 million 
funding from our bid to the Coastal communities Fund.  In addition, Sellafield Ltd topped that 
up with a further £600,000. 

We will give an update as soon as we have it. 

Question from Councillor Linda Jones-Bullman:  Will Cleator Moor be receiving the public 
realm money in addition to the high street possible funding and stronger towns funding? 

Response from the Mayor, we also have a bid in for Heritage Status for Cleator Moor for £1.3 
million, that bid is still in and we are expecting a response in the next week or so and would 
be additional to the stronger towns fund.

Questions on Councillor David Moore’s portfolio were invited.

Councillor David Moore began with a statement referring to a question raised by Councillor 
Dave Banks regarding Plutonium and the issue we have with the Ministry of Defence. He 
stated that he had written to the permanent secretary of defence to complain about the way 
we have been treated by the MoD and their engagement to discuss these things.  Once a 
response is received, a copy will be sent to Councillor Banks.

Page 8



Question from Councillor Sam Pollen, regarding the Councils response to Regulatory Asset 
Base (RAB) - concern re involvement of Councillors, or the lack of it.  It was asked if this could 
be opened up to all members.  We have a lot of nuclear briefs going forward, to open that up 
so all councillors can have an input would be appreciated. 
Secondly regarding Nuclear Position Statements, can these meetings also be opened to all 
members?

Response Cllr Moore:   The reason Regulatory Asset Base was delegated and agreed by 
Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board was because it needed a quick response.  This is a high-
level consultation RAB engaged is to find a new model for new nuclear.  This creates an 
opportunity for investors to spread that investment over a longer period of time.  It looks at 
spreading the cost of new build across tax payers, the government should be paying more to 
get big nuclear facilities built again and this is one of the methods of doing it.  It would spread 
the cost across the consumer and across the tax payer.

We could be one of the key beneficiaries to this if we are going to develop Moorside.  We will 
need a new finance model.  The response has to be in in the next few days.  Happy to share 
the response but because of timescales it won’t be possible to engage all members in that 
process.

Councillor Sam Pollen in a Supplementary, asked that in any future consultations, all members 
should be given the opportunity.

In response Councillor Moore:  when time allows we will do that.  
Geological Disposal Facility position, we are clear that is our position it is a holding statement.  
Radioactive Waste Management Briefing next week /member briefings COWRM/
Holding Statement allows us to negotiate forward with Government.  We are still awaiting a 
transport plan. This is a long process. Government is allowing 20 years to get through the 
planning process.

Question from Councillor John Kane, regarding the Inventory for possible storage.  We made a 
clear statement from this Council that we would not accept Plutonium going down the route 
of geological disposal and as far as I am aware we haven’t changed that yet.  It’s obvious to 
me which way the Government are driving this, they want the waste to come here. 70/80% is 
already here but they have given us nothing as a community.  This is our last chance to get 
anything out of them.

There is nothing wrong with the current storage, it is safe and does not bring a problem to 
this community.

In response Councillor Moore:  On the subject of plutonium this Council’s position hasn’t 
changed.  
Surface storage is currently stored in ageing facilities, some where planning consent is 
running out, something has to be done.   There does need to be a solution.  New surface 
stores would have to be built.  Safety will always be the priority.

Page 9



Councillor John Kane asked a supplementary, The life-blood of this community has been 
Sellafield, in the next year we will lose thousands of jobs.   

Response from Councillor Moore:  We do accept that there will be a loss in shift workers jobs.  
We get a lot out of the nuclear industry.  We have a £30 million campus up the road.  We do 
negotiate about what wastes come here, we have a different position and a different model.  
We are negotiating hard.  We want to get the best for our communities and the best for the 
workforce. 

Question from Councillor Sam Pollen, there is a meeting on 30th September to discuss our 
nuclear position statements. The Council position is clearly to support a GDF.  Loss of jobs 
over next few years, there have been lots of words about diversification, but no action.
I don’t think the community gets what it should for housing the waste that it does.

Response from Councillor David Moore:  We have not agreed that a GDF is the place for it and 
this does not commit us to this.

At this point, the Chair stopped the discussion as this was not on this agenda. 

Question from Councillor Felicity Wilson, as Councillors we have never been as well informed 
or supported in the nuclear industry.  I commend the Executive, we have a dedicated nuclear 
team and receive regular briefings. This compares with very little 5 years ago.  Can we 
continue and have more of it and ask our members to support these briefings? 

The Mayor in response stated that in the last 12 months the NDA estate have put £100 million 
of additional work into Sellafield.  We spoke earlier about West Cumbria Mining which is a 
£150 million project, this is all over the press which talks about the positive impact that will 
have.  The additional works sourced by Sellafield and brought to West Cumbria in the last 12 
months is worth £100 million and funds a lot of jobs.  We need to focus and build on the good 
stories.  The Whitehaven Campus funded by Nuclear Money. 

We are currently in negotiation for a long-term social impact programme where they will 
commit to a ten year contract.  Positive negotiation gets you a positive outcome.  There are 
no orders for reprocessing now.  Let’s get real and focus on how we can get the maximum out 
of it. 

Question from Councillor John Kane stated, this is actually on the agenda as it is in the report. 
My concerns are not about the council, they are about the paymasters, the NDA, the 
Government.  They spend £2 billion per year at Sellafield.  We get next to nothing out of that. 
The NDA mission and they have been here 13 years to create diversification.  I have not seen 
any of it. We need to ask the NDA what they are doing for this community.

In response the Mayor stated that a fair chunk of the money they spend is wages for people 
who live here and pensions.  West Cumbria Mining talked about wanting to source his supply 
chain locally and he couldn’t find those businesses because they didn’t exist.  We need to 
work with the industry to make sure those businesses are here in the future, that’s why there 
is huge investment into the Buzz Station.  Look and develop businesses that can become 

Page 10



tomorrow’s supply chain and make sure we have them throughout Copeland.  We need to 
focus on how we can work with them so they are able to help.

Councillor Sam Pollen supported Councillor Kane in that we will lose thousands of jobs.  
Councillor Kane is quite right to point this out.  That is a fact and we need to know.  We 
welcome positive things. Diversification was promised, when will it be delivered?

In response Councillor Moore stated that extra clean up works committed to employ and 
spend down there.
Last week we visited to Cavendish Nuclear, they are looking at the technologies, they are 
developing in conjunction with Sellafield to export around the world.  They are developing 
cutting edge technology.  Developing University ideas, that’s what we want to get behind.

Councillor Steven Morgan, as Chair of SNEB, commented that when the NDA met I gave them 
a hard time, their mission is not only to clean up but to realise the assets.  One of the things 
about Sellafield and the nuclear industry is that it is a gem, a national resource.  We need to 
use that.  

It is untrue to say that all the work in this industry is done at Sellafield.  The chair of BEC 
Business Cluster just returned from Japan where he was working with them to get business in 
West Lakes and other places.

Sellafield are putting together teams to do maintenance activity overseas.  In the SMR work 
too. We will not only build them in West Cumbria, but install them and the maintenance 
would be done by West Cumbrians going to them.  There is an awful lot being done.  When 
MoD closes a base or facility, there is a transition.  There will be jobs in the future, they may 
not be the same, but there will be jobs.

We will be working very hard to influence NDA and Central Government to make sure they 
play their part but for our part as a business community is to be able to market what we have 
in terms of property and with the technology the National Laboratory has.  We always forget 
to mention that we have the National Nuclear Laboratory here where Nuclear Research and 
Development are at the cutting edge in the world.

Question from Councillor Andy Pratt, the Transport Movement Strategy Plan is long overdue, I 
believe Sellafield Ltd have ditched the independent company that were doing that report.  
Can we make sure that this gets done as soon as possible and who will scrutinise it if it’s done 
in-house?

Response from Councillor Moore stated we have been pressing Sellafield Ltd for a number of 
years for the proper full Transport Movement Strategy Plan, it’s been promised. It’s been 
subject to planning conditions that are not currently discharged, they’ve been put under 
pressure. We will be expressing in the strongest terms we are not comfortable with.  We are 
very unhappy about what they have done now this transport plan needs to be brought 
forward quickly.

Page 11



Question from Councillor Ged McGrath, there is a Polling District Review currently underway, 
there is a general election imminent, will we be using new or old polling stations?  

In response the Electoral and Democratic Services Manager clarified that if a General Election 
was called before 1st December 2019, it would run on the current polling districts and polling 
stations.

Questions on Councillor Michael McVeigh’s portfolio were invited.

Statement from Councillor Mike Hawkins stated he was impressed by the Housing team and 
their professionalism and working together with other authorities. He thanked the Executive 
member and the Housing Team.

Councillor Michael McVeigh agreed that we had excellent officers in the Housing Team, and 
also gave details of visits to empty homes in the area. 

Question from Councillor Peter Tyson, How many places did you visit and do you have a 
report?

Response from Councillor McVeigh provided an overview of the visit and the reasons for the 
empty properties.  He stated that absent landlords were a problem and everything is being 
done that can be done in a legal context to ensure every part of the borough was being 
looked at.

In a supplementary, Councillor Tyson asked if Ward Councillors could have more involvement, 
can they be included in communications. 

In response Councillor McVeigh reminded Council of the Protocol for members when 
contacting Home Group, first go to Home Group and if you don’t get a response let us know.  
Relay any concerns you have to ‘contact us’.

The Mayor then reminded Council that the Housing Strategy for Copeland was launched 
recently and this document is available on the website.  It’s a first class document which helps 
both Councillors and residents and important that every member downloads or prints off this 
document.

Questions on Councillor Gwynneth Everett’s portfolio were invited.

Question from Councillor Doug Wilson, with reference to the Copeland Work and Skills 
partnership,  Millom Network Centre has gone through a transformation and that the building 
is back in the ownership of the County Council.

The Network Centre Ltd still exists and has relocated to Unit 3 on the Devonshire Road Estate 
and offers training for woodwork skills and mechanics. Last year we did speak to the previous 
portfolio holder about funding courses there, but this wasn’t carried through because of the 
change in portfolio member.
As a council, can we use this facility and help to make it sustainable?

Page 12



In response Councillor Gwynneth Everett stated she would bring this to the attention of the 
appropriate officer and provide Councillor Wilson with a written response.  

Question from Councillor Ged McGrath:  Can you provide information on Copeland Borough 
Council’s apprenticeship programme.  We heard lots of good things last year.  Will we be 
taking more on?

In response Councillor Everett agreed to provide the information in a written answer to 
Councillor McGrath. Also the Beacon information to Councillor Pratt

Question from Councillor Peter Tyson, regarding  Social Inclusion, does Well Whitehaven just 
include Mirehouse, or does it include the rest of the ward? 

In response Councillor Everett agreed to provide a written response.

Question from Councillor Graham Minshaw, relating to the Cleator Moor sports pitch.  I’m 
receiving questions from the hockey club who are going to lose that facility when the new 
pitch is laid, they are currently still using the facility. They have had no feedback as to when or 
how long that will be still usable for them.  Can you find out and let me know what the 
position is?

In response Councillor Everett agreed to provide a written response.

Note:  At this point, Councillor Joan Hully declared an interest due to being a Cleator Moor 
Town Councillor. 

Statement from Councillor Felicity Wilson:  Well Whitehaven is a superb model that we could 
emulate throughout Copeland, are we looking at this as an ambition to develop a Well 
Copeland?.

In Response the Mayor stated that we do a lot already that would come under the Well 
Copeland banner.  Significant funding has gone into the Good Enough Start programme.  The 
Well Whitehaven Project Is specific to Whitehaven and has been largely Government funded 
and was chosen with nine other areas across the North of England.  Well Copeland is well 
underway, we are doing more as an authority than we have ever done.

We need to work together to bring these programmes together and bring in the funding 
together to make sure they all work and have the necessary impact.

Questions on Councillor Steven Morgan’s portfolio were invited.

Question from Councillor Sam Pollen:  I welcome the news about Hensingham play park and 
hope this is a sign of things to come.  We have had problems with play parks in the past.  I 
hope this move reflects a future change in policy and we will prioritise the 13 or 14 play parks 

Page 13



we have across Copeland.   There’s a real need to have excellent play parks for our kids.  We 
have one in Egremont which sits outside the Copeland ones.  I would like to hear the Portfolio 
holder’s view on that and would request a discussion with the Portfolio Holder with a view to 
getting support to getting that play park re-opened.

In response Councillor Morgan welcomed a meeting with Councillor Pollen and stated we are 
looking at the full range of play parks that are not within our maintenance. We must make 
sure our play parks are safe and we have the appropriate funding for them. There are a 
number of play parks that we want to talk about, but it’s important to understand that what 
might have been a play park years ago, the type of equipment and facilities are different 
nowadays.  There have been questions why the rubber floor at the Hensingham Park has 
been replaced with wood chips.  Modernising the old facilities are not as easy as we think.  
Let’s make sure we do right by the young people.

Question from Councillor Allan Forster: Would like to pass on the Gratitude of Council to 
James Hunter and the team.  Can we look at the decision by council in 2015 not to replace 
play parks when they came to the end of the line.  Is this something we can look at?

In response Councillor Morgan stated we were able to get a one time Government grant to 
replace what was torn down.  If you’re talking about additional things at Hensingham, I’d be 
glad to take a look at that.  Right now there is no more funding. At the end of this month, all 
of our play areas will be open.

Statement from Councillor Peter Tyson,  Woodhouse play park belongs to Home Group, when 
something breaks they don’t repair it, they remove it.  Are you aware of these situations?

In response Councillor Morgan stated he was aware, but the problem was that it was not a 
Copeland property. A completed list of play areas and who owns them has been requested.
It is of great concern.  We have a number of play parks that are degrading over time because 
Copeland Council doesn’t own them.

Note:  At this point Councillor Joan Hully declared an interest, due to having opened 
Woodhouse Play Park.

In a supplementary Councillor Tyson stated that these play parks are well used and very 
important to the people in that area. 

Question from Councillor Ged McGrath: Delighted to see that the Commercial Strategy has 
begun to move. Will this be rolled out to members in the near future?

In response Councillor Morgan stated, Yes, we will be asking you to participate. It’s not 
enough for just the officers to do it. It will be necessary for all the councillors too to help us.  
Commercial awareness is really important.  The future for the borough is going to depend on 
how we make it a welcoming place to do business. To attract investment as well as business, 
the SMR is a good example.  We need to have multiple industries, workshops to develop 
ideas.  This won’t happen if we don’t collectively do things.

Page 14



Question from Councillor Felicity Wilson:  Delighted to hear a definitive list of parks is being 
compiled. It is important we know where funding can come from if needed.

In response Councillor Morgan agreed to circulate the list of play parks and who owns them 
to all members.   

RESOLVED: That the Mayor’s Executive report be noted.  

C 19/34 Former Assembly Rooms, Howgill Street 

Consideration was given to a report requesting an extension to the offer agreed at Full 
Council in September 2018 of the Former Assembly Rooms, Howgill Street, Whitehaven. 

Councillor David Moore moved the report, which was seconded by Councillor Andy Pratt.

Councillor Sam Meteer asked for an assurance that any Service Level Agreement would be 
monitored and met.

Councillor Moore stated he was not aware of any that were not.
 
Councillor Brian O’Kane:  Congratulated Copeland on trying to use assets to help the 
community.  Cumbria County Council seem opposed to this and not use their properties. 

Councillor Moore stated he was happy with our track record and congratulated the officers 
involved.

Councillor Dave Banks:  Supported this proposal. He stated that the Phoenix Enterprise Centre 
was a good example of working in partnership.

At this point, Councillor Banks declared an interest in Phoenix Enterprise Centre.  

RESOLVED: that 
a) The Council’s leadership role and partnership approach in ensuring women centred 

approaches through involving women’s access to services in Copeland and in 
particular the aim to develop safe spaces as part of the work to ensure women can 
access services safely and in a supportive environment be noted and supported;

b) The successful delivery of a Women Out West Women’s Centre through the 
partnership and the hard work of Rachel Holliday and accountable body role of Time 
to Change in receiving Ministry of Justice, PCC and Francis C Scott funding be noted, 
and

c) The extension of the offer of 14-15 Howgill Street for Women Out West Women’s 
Centre development and confirm the proposal to pursue a peppercorn lease will be 
open for a further 24 months and subject , as previously agreed to the final sign off of 
best consideration, viability of the business plan and governance for this element of 
Women Out West and for this to be delegated to the Council Solicitor in liaison with 
the S151 Officer, Portfolio Holders and Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities 
be agreed.

Page 15



C 19/35 Code of Conduct Update 

Consideration was given to a report from the Standards and Ethics Committee requesting an 
amendment to the Procedure for Investigating Councillor Code of Conduct Complaints. 

Councillor Dave Banks, as Chair of the Ethics and Standards Committee moved the report, 
which was seconded by Councillor Doug Wilson.

During consideration of this item, the Mayor commented that the number of Code of Conduct 
complaints has plummeted.  He was delighted that the time has been freed up for officers to 
get on with their work.

RESOLVED: that the Procedure for Investigating Councillor Code of Conduct Complaints be 
amended to include the following additional paragraph:

“That where a member is the subject of a complaint against him/her which is received by the 
Principal Authority whilst still holding office, and subsequently resigns prior to the 
determination of that complaint, that no further action be taken against that member in 
respect of that complaint for a period of 24 months from the date of resignation. If within 
that period the subject is either re-elected or co-opted on to a council, that the complaint is 
resumed and will be referred back to the Standards and Ethics Committee for consideration; 
that if the subject is not so re-elected or co-opted within that period that no further action be 
taken on the complaint.” 

C 19/36 Bi-Annual Monitoring Officer Report 

Consideration was given to the Bi-Annual Monitoring Officer Report which had been 
recommended to Council by the Standards and Ethics Committee for noting.

Councillor David Moore moved the report.

Councillor Dave Banks, as Chair of the Ethics and Standards Committee commended the 
officers for their hard work. 

During the discussion that followed, Councillor Ged McGrath commented that his mobile 
telephone  number was not listed on the Copeland website. 

Councillor McGrath also thanked Democratic Services for providing the excellent induction 
training that was offered to all Members and for the continued support.

RESOLVED: that the Bi-Annual Monitoring Officer Report be noted.

Page 16



C 19/37 Constitution Changes Relating to Planning 

Consideration was given to a report from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, who were 
ask by Council at the 25 June 2019 meeting to scrutinise proposed changes to the Council’s 
Constitution relating to Planning.

Councillor John Kane as Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee moved the report, 
which was seconded by Councillor Graham Calvin.

Councillor John Kane then put forward the proposals of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, which were:-

 To agree with the proposed changes to the Amendment to Scheme of Delegation 
section.

 To reject all changes to the Member’s Site Visit Section.

 To remove point 1 in the Public Speaking Procedure (Restricting the number of 
speakers to a maximum of five in support or five in objection to any planning 
application) and accept points 2 (The restriction of the opportunity to speak to one 
meeting only to prevent repetition) and 3 (A requirement for any information that a 
speaker wishes to circulate to the Planning Panel such as photographs or written 
statement to be submitted six working days prior to the meeting).

 To accept the Minded to Decisions section subject to a reference to site visits being 
added.

 To reject the Members Protocol and create a Members Protocol Task and Finish Group 
to give it further consideration.

Councillor David Moore thanked the OSC for their report.

Councillor Moore was happy to accept the OSC recommendations, except those regarding 
Planning Panel Site Visits.
By way of an amendment the following was put forward:
“2.2 of the agenda report, Site Visits are carried out for the Planning Panel only, and 
subsequent site visits will be arranged for any Ward Member or any Parish or Town 
Councillors that wishes one”

We need to take on board the legal advice regarding lobbying.

Councillor Michael McVeigh agreed regarding 2.2 of the agenda report and cited his 
experiences as previous chair of the Panning Panel, where there had been conflicts on site 
visits.

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman requested training for Town/Parish Councillors and Ward 
members on how to behave on site visits.

Councillor Andy Pratt asked for clarification on delegation and supported the proposal for 
separate site visits.

Page 17



Councillor Doug Wilson has never known a site visit to be arranged for just a Parish or Town 
Council and the proposal makes no sense to him. Councillor Wilson asked what had changed?

In reply, Councillor Moore stated that the legal position had changed. Copeland was out of 
step with all other Councils in the country and to protect the council against legal challenge 
this change should go through.

Councillor Sam Meteer stated that Ward and Town/Parish Councillors were elected and 
entitled to attend.

In reply, Councillor Moore re-stated that Ward and Town/Parish Councillors would be 
welcome to attend a site visit arranged just for them.

Councillor Sam Meteer asked if a guarantee could be given that Ward and Town/Parish 
Councillors would receive the same information as the Planning Panel if they had a separate 
site visit.

In reply, Councillor Moore confirmed they would.

The Monitoring Officer then provided Council with evidence of case law and the exposure the 
council now has.
Due to the constitutional changes being made it is right to make these changes now.

Councillor Dave Banks gave his view regarding the value of having Ward and Parish/Town 
councillors present at site visits.

In reply, Councillor Moore confirmed that Ward Councillors and Parish/Town councillors 
would still be entitled to attend Planning Panel meetings to put their points across.

The Mayor stated that he can see no reason why this is causing a problem. No one will be 
denied any information. We will continue to give members all the information.

The Chief Executive clarified that the whole issue was about perception.
Copeland would be open to legal challenge if changes to the site visits were not made. 
Nobody was being excluded from the process and now this issue had been aired, the risk of 
challenge had increased considerably.

Councillor Andy Pratt asked for and received clarification that there would be two separate 
visits. 

Councillor Peter Tyson stated that whatever happens tonight, he would still attend a site visit 
if it’s in his ward, if he’s got something to say, invited or not.

Councillor Brian O’Kane stated that he has researched other Councils on the internet and can 
find no other council that holds site visits other than for Planning Panel members. 

Councillor Mike Hawkins advised that as a County Councillor, he had been asked to attend in 
the past and thought it was courteous of the Borough Council to invite him, but he had never 
spoken at the Site Visit, just observed.

Page 18



  
Councillor Felicity Wilson, believes this is an issue of trust.

The Mayor stated that this was not a matter of trust, it was a matter of perception.

Councillor Ged McGrath asked for clarification and stated he could not see what the problem 
was.

It was then moved by Councillor Joan Hully duly seconded and agreed that a 10 minute 
adjournment take place and the meeting stood ADJOURNED.

(Note: Councillors Fred Gleaves and Brian O’Kane left the meeting)

RECONVENED

Councillor David Moore by way of an amendment, the following was put forward to 2.2
“Site Visits are carried out for the Planning Panel only, and subsequent site visits will be 
arranged for any Ward Member or any Parish or Town Councillors that wishes one”

A vote on the amendment then took place and the result was:
9 For the Amendment, 14 Against the amendment and 1 Abstention.
The amendment fell.

It was agreed that 2.2 be returned to Standards and Ethics Committee for further discussion

RESOLVED – That with the exception of 2.2 which will be referred to the Ethics and Standards 
Committee for consideration, the remaining recommendations in the Agenda report be 
agreed.

C 19/38 2019 - 2023 Commercial Strategy 

Consideration was given to the 2019-2023 Commercial Strategy.

Councillor Steven Morgan moved the report, which was seconded by Councillor David Moore.

RESOLVED: that the Commercial Strategy 2019-2023 as a means of enabling the Council to 
deliver a key ambition with strategic outcomes be agreed and approved.

C 19/39 Contract Standing Orders 

Consideration was given to a Report proposing the adoption of new Contract Standing Orders 
to replace the previous 2012 version.

Councillor Steven Morgan moved the report, which was seconded by Councillor David Moore.

RESOLVED: that 

Page 19



a) Council adopt, as part of the Council’s constitution, and in accordance with 
section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Contract Standing 
Orders forming the Appendix to the Agenda report; and

b) that any minor changes necessary to the said Contract Standing Orders,                
following implementation and in the interests of business efficacy, be 
delegated to the Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Commercial Development,                                                    
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Chair of the Standards 
and Ethics Committee.

C 19/40 Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

It was noted that the next meeting of Council would be held at 2:00pm on Monday 
2nd  December 2019 at the Cleator Moor Civic Hall and Masonic Centre.

The Meeting closed at 9.00 pm 

Chairman

Page 20



SPECIAL COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present: Councillor Joan Hully (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors  David Banks, 
Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, Graham Calvin, James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, 
Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Linda Jones-
Bulman, John Kane, Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, Graham Minshaw, 
David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, 
Peter Tyson, Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Julie Betteridge (Director of Growth and Inclusive 
Communities), Michaela Peet (Assistant Solicitor), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Steven Brown 
(Director of Financial Resources), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and Democratic Services 
Manager), Mike Graham (Political Advisor), Andrew Clarke (Communications and Engagement 
Manager), Lesley Taylor (PA to the Mayor), Rose Blaney (Electoral Services Officer) and James 
Young (Scrutiny Officer).

Also Present: Celia McKenzie (Harbour Commission Chief Executive)

C 19/41 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from:

Councillors Fred Gleaves, Tom Higgins, Sam Meteer and Carl Walmsley.

Officers: Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 
(Monitoring Officer)), Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer).

C 19/42 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

No declarations of interest were made.

C 19/43 Exclusion of Press and Public 

RESOLVED – That the press and public be excluded for the following item of business in view 
of likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

C 19/44 Cumbria Coastal Activities Centre - Request To Act As Accountable Body 

Before introducing the report, Mayor Mike Starkie welcomed Celia McKenzie, the Chief 
Executive of the Harbour Commission, to the meeting and thanked her for joining us. 

Mayor Mike Starkie introduced the report recommending that Council acts as an accountable 
body on behalf of Whitehaven Harbour Commission for the Cumbria Coastal Activities Centre 
project.

The report was seconded by Councillor David Moore.

Page 21



During the consideration of this item members asked for further details and clarification on 
the following points:-

 Was there to be a financial burden on the Council – not as the accountable body, 
which includes a provision for the reimbursement of officer time.

 Was there to be any impact on services provided by the Beacon – the project would 
be complimentary to the Beacon and they are included in constant communication to 
ensure no negative impact.

 Was there to be an impact on the Miner’s Memorial – the memorial will be moved to 
a new, more suitable, location.

 Was the weather considered when the slipway was designed – the slipway was 
prepared by expert Maritime designers and the weather was considered.

 Was the liability of the building for the Whitehaven Harbour Commission and the 
running of the building for a community interest company – that is a correct 
summary for the liability and running of the building.

 Was there to be any repercussions for the Council should the project overrun – the 
terms and conditions that Copeland will sign ensure that there was no additional 
liability and are a key part of considerations.

 Was there to be disabled access to both the building and the activities – yes, it is a 
coastal community centre for everyone, regardless of ability.

 Was there to be any governance from the Council in running the project –this is a 
Harbour Commission project, we will remain close, but not be on the Board.

 Was there to be a councillor appointed to the interest group – not at the moment. 
We are focusing on the initial stages of the project, with a member of staff on the 
advisory group.

 Was there to be any alternative energy sources considered for the project - the 
heating of the premises and the water used in the facility will come from a water 
source heat pump within the inner harbour. Solar and wind were investigated but 
neither were a financially feasible option.

 Was there to be any plans regarding tackling environmental issues included in the 
project – a Sea Bin was installed in April which was a success and over the next 18 
months another six will be installed to remove particulate pollution. An active eye is 
also being kept on heavy metal pollution.

 Was there to be any collaboration with youth groups – currently in discussion with 
the Harbour Youth Project, Britain’s Energy Coast’s (BEC) Young Professionals, the Sea 
Cadets and a new member of the Harbour Commissioner’s staff who will work with 
young people.

 Was there to be any plans to consider changing the Harbour into a Lagoon – it has 
been investigated but is not currently feasible.

 Was there any thoughts regarding the dams on Pow Beck and Queen’s Dock – there 
have been ongoing conversations with the Environmental Agency with no current 
solution. Will continue to be investigated.

 Was there to be adequate parking for all who wished to access the centre – it’s an 
ongoing challenge that has been considered and will be monitored throughout the 
entire project.

 Was there any communication to involve the cycling authorities – multiple groups 
have been contacted with ongoing discussions.

 Was there to be a new café put into the ground floor of the Beacon –currently in 
discussion with potential providers.

Page 22



 Was there an adequate timescale established considered for the project – the initial 
timescale of March 2021 has been removed following the projects placement onto the 
reserve list. A new timescale is still to be decided, following approval of the report 
recommendations, which will be adequate for the project.

 Was there any consideration given to public toilets – when the building is open the 
toilets will be available to the public.

 Was there any consideration given to subsidisation for the poorer people within the 
community – to be considered and discussed for when the project is closer to its final 
stages.

 Was there any further information available about bringing opportunities to all in 
the borough to use the centre – to be discussed and given when the project is closer 
to its final stages.

 Was there to be communication with the Royal Yacht’s association – discussions are 
ongoing but they have been involved from the start.

 Was there to be support for local organisations to use the centre - discussions are 
ongoing but they have been involved from the start. Working with them to provide 
the facilities needed.

RESOLVED: Unanimously that:

(a) subject to (c), the Council agreed to act as accountable body, on behalf of the 
Whitehaven Harbour Commissioners, in respect of a grant to be received from the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government for a coastal communities 
fund grant of £2,447,627 to create a coastal activities centre at South Beach, 
Whitehaven;

(b) that the Council’s capital budget and programme be adjusted accordingly to allow 
for resolution (a); and

(c) that an agreement, satisfactory to the Solicitor, the Section 151 Officer, the 
Monitoring Officer, the Elected Mayor and the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, be entered into between the Council and the Commissioners to 
ensure that the grant conditions, as referred to in paragraph 4 of the report, are 
complied with by the Commissioners and to ensure that any other risks arising are 
satisfactorily mitigated.        

The Meeting closed at 10.55 am 

Chairman

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



SPECIAL COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2019

Present: Councillor Joan Hully (Chair), Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors  David Banks, 
Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, 
Allan Forster, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Tom Higgins, Linda Jones-Bulman, John Kane, 
Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, 
David Moore, Brian O'Kane, Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, Doug Wilson and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate Services and 
Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Steven Brown (Director 
of Financial Resources), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and Democratic Services Manager), Mike 
Graham (Political Advisor), Michaela Peet (Assistant Solicitor) and Andrew Clarke 
(Communications and Engagement Manager).

C 19/45 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from: 

Councillors: Graham Calvin, Fred Gleaves, Mike Hawkins, Steven Morgan, Sam Pollen, 
Carl Walmsley and Eileen Weir.

Officers: Julie Betteridge (Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities).

C 19/46 Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

There were no declarations of interest made at this point in the meeting.

C 19/47 Copeland Local Development Scheme 2019 

Consideration was given to the Copeland Local Development Scheme 2019.

In moving the report, which was seconded by Councillor David Moore, Councillor Michael 
McVeigh advised that the Strategic Planning team was now fully staffed. It was also stated 
that three workshops had been held, to which all Members had been invited. 

During the discussion that followed, Councillor Sam Meteer asked if any previous 
representations made would be carried forward and was advised that they would. The Chief 
Executive also stated that a call for additional sites would be made to inform the new 
planning process.

Councillor Sam Meteer asked if the Strategic Planning Team was now at its full complement 
and was assured it was. 

RESOLVED:- that the Local Development Scheme be approved as the Council’s work 
programme for producing the new Copeland Local Plan 2017-2035.  

Page 25



C 19/48 Local Plan Issues and Options Draft 

Consideration was given to the Local Plan Issues and Options draft.

Councillor Michael McVeigh moved the report, which was seconded by Councillor David 
Moore.

Councillors then had the opportunity to ask questions on the report.

Councillor Dave Banks stated that the map shown on page 61 of the agenda report was 
meaningless as the detail was impossible to read. Councillor Andy Pratt then stated that it 
was clearer when read on the tablet, as the page could be expanded.

Councillor Dave Banks further stated that on page 108 of the agenda report, Sneakyeat 
Industrial Estate was missing from the list and he would like it included. 

Councillor Banks asked if there was any scope for developing land around the West Cumbria 
Mining site with small units that could support the industry.

With regard to Question N1 on page 116 of the agenda report, Councillor Banks referred to 
Option 2 – Direct workers moving offsite to Whitehaven, and stated he would like to see them 
directed to all the main towns, not just Whitehaven.   

Councillor Banks stated that the potential of providing indoor market/ business start-up 
provision was well overdue.

In response, Councillor David Moore stated that this was the start of the process and all 
comments were welcome.

Councillor Jackie Bowman expressed her thanks to the Strategic Planning team for their hard 
work and for facilitating the Member’s workshops.

In conclusion, the Chief Executive stated that this is one of the most important strategic 
documents this Council has and encouraged all Members to contribute to the consultation.

RESOLVED:- that the Local Development Scheme be considered and it be agreed that the 
Strategic Planning team commence an eight week public consultation on the Issues and 
Options document.  

C 19/49 Strategic Asset Management Plan 

Consideration was given to the updated Strategic Asset Management Plan, which had been 
recommended for approval by the Executive at their meeting on 
16 September 2019.

The Strategic Asset Management Plan was last updated in October 2013.

Councillor David Moore moved the report, which was seconded by Councillor Andy Pratt.

Page 26



Councillor Dave Banks was amazed at the number of assets the Council owned and that he 
had received the details for the Parton area. He asked that a list for each Councillor be 
provided.

In response, Councillor David Moore suggested that only Councillors who had a good reason 
for requiring a detailed map should make that request.

Councillor Sam Meteer asked why the 186 Community Assets shown in the table on page 245 
of the agenda report was showing a value of £0.

Councillor Moore advised that as these were Community Assets and not for sale, therefore no 
commercial value had been attached to them. 

Councillor Sam Meteer then asked who decided what was a ‘surplus asset’.

In reply, Councillor Moore stated that any decision to dispose of a ‘surplus asset’ would be 
made by Council.

Councillor Felicity Wilson thanked officers for the report and asked if there was an accurate 
list of assets, such as works of art, and if those valuations were up to date.

Councillor Moore in response stated that the report was referring to land and property assets 
and that other assets would be held in a separate list.

The Chief Executive and Head of Financial Resources then provided details of how lists were 
held of other assets.

In a supplementary question, Councillor Felicity Wilson expressed concern at the number of 
art works that had been loaned out for long periods and would like a detailed list of those 
assets.

The Chief Executive asked Members if they were aware of such items, they highlight these to 
the Officers.

Councillor Sam Meteer noted that on page 260 of the agenda report, Whitegate play area 
shows as ‘Whitehaven’, should this not be ‘Egremont’?

Councillor Joan Hully referred to page 259 and Cleator Moor Market Square which states 
‘includes free parking’ and requested that it be noted that Copeland do not pay for the free 
parking, this is paid for by Cleator Moor Town Council and Regen.
Councillor Hully then declared an interest due to being a Cleator Moor Town Councillor.

Councillor Brian O’Kane asked for clarification regarding the ownership of Cartgate in Crow 
Park within the Allotments section.

Councillor Moore confirmed that these were transferred to Whitehaven Town Council.

RESOLVED:- that the updated Strategic Asset Management Plan be approved.  

Page 27



C 19/50 Constitution Changes 

Consideration was given to changes to the Council’s Constitution.

Councillor David Moore moved the report, which was seconded by Mayor Mike Starkie, and 
stated that the report had already been to the Standards and Ethics Committee for approval.

Councillor Sam Meteer asked for clarification regarding point 2.9.3 on page 287 of the agenda 
report, was this just Full Council or any committee meeting of the council.

In response, Councillor David Moore confirmed it was any committee meeting of the council.

Councillor Sam Meteer then referred to point 3.10.2 on page 291 of the agenda report and 
made a suggestion to change the wording to allow children as young as eight to sign a petition 
if the subject affected that age group directly.

(Note: Councillor John Kane joined the meeting at this point)

Councillor Jackie Bowman stated that there was no mention of training in the document and 
within point 2.9.9 on page 288, the Mayor should be included.

Councillor Hugh Branney stated that legally age 10 is the age of understaning of what is right 
and wrong, therefore 10 should be the appropriate age to sign a petition.

Councillor Sam Meteer asked for clarification regarding point 7.4.2 on page 305 of the agenda 
report and who decides if the Mayor has a ‘need to know’.

Councillor Moore confirmed this would be the Monitoring Officer.

Councillor Sam Meteer referred to Page 339 of the agenda report and suggested that the 
Nationally Significant Infrastructures Projects Panel be deleted as Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Projects are not dealt with by this Council. He was also stated that ModGov has 
deleted this panel.

In response, Councillor Moore confirmed that the Nationally Significant Infrastructures 
Projects Panel still exists, but only sits if a proposal is received under the National 
Infrastructure Projects. Copeland is not the decision maker but does respond to consultation. 
The NSIPs Panel is also on ModGov although has not met recently.

RESOLVED:- that 
a) The proposed layout of the Constitution be approved,
b) the consequential changes made in Part 2 – Articles 2, 9 & 11 and Part 3.10 be noted,
c) The changes proposed in Articles 2, 3, 5, 7 and 13 be approved, and
d) The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy be granted delegated 

powers to amend the Constitution accordingly to ensure regulatory compliance and 
process updates, including revisions for any necessary incidental or consequential 
changes. 

Page 28



C 19/51 Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

The next meeting of Council will be held on Monday 2nd December 2019 at 2:00pm in Cleator 
Moor Civic Hall and Masonic Centre, Market Square, Cleator Moor. CA25 5AR.

The Meeting closed at 4.45 pm 

Chair

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Full Council 161219

Executive Report to Full Council 

Strategic Leadership - Mayor Mike Starkie

Communications 

The Communications team was delighted that the Recycle for Copeland campaign received 
national recognition and was named Campaign of the Year at the national LARAC Awards in 
October.  The campaign has contributed to recycling rates more than doubling across the 
borough since we launched our new kerbside service in April 2018.  The award is testament 
to some outstanding work from the Communications team, and excellent joint working 
across a number of departments.

Teams and individuals across the council have received a large amount of press coverage 
over the past three months. This has included a profile on our Chief Executive Pat Graham; a 
feature on our Elections team and the logistics of managing the elections process; our 
Building Control team receiving an internationally recognised quality mark; and the 
appointment of Katie Read, our new Tourism Officer. The Whitehaven News has also 
profiled colleagues Sammy Woodford (Planning Conservation Officer) and Jessica Leary 
(Visitor Host at The Beacon Museum) which helps showcase the range of careers available 
at the council.

Our Pride of Place campaign continues apace, with a weekly feature page in The 
Whitehaven News and wide-reaching social media posts. Recent coverage has included our 
Recycling Week activities; bulb planting in Whitehaven; the Get Buzzing pollinator project; 
as well as profiles of members of the public doing their bit for their community.

Other council matters to receive media coverage include:

 TV personality Ian Hislop opening a new exhibit at The Beacon Museum
 The withdrawal of some smaller recycling sites
 Our campaign to mark national Empty Homes Week
 The Mayor’s visit to China to boost educational, tourism and business links
 The clampdown on anti-social behaviour with the introduction of new Public Space 

Protection Orders
 The planned expansion of Whitehaven Cemetery 
 The newly-signed Memorandum of Understanding between Copeland Council and 

Allerdale Council

 Economic Development

Cumbria LEP

Cumbria LEP has aligned the Local Industrial Strategy with the Government template and 
has submitted this version to government for comment.  The Board continues to develop 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



sector group work plans, advised through research as required, and are developing a digital 
strategy for Cumbria, which is being guided by the strategy boards and will inform sector 
groups.

Diversification and Growth:

Copeland Tourism Sector Development

Our Tourism Sector Development Officer joined the Council on 16th September to work with 
partners to stimulate growth in our tourism sector, working closely with our Connecting 
Cumbria’ s Hidden Coast Programme.

Early work includes supporting the development of our Future High Street Fund Business 
Case, focusing on the visitor and “experience” economy to create new and exciting leisure 
opportunities as part of the redevelopment of Whitehaven.  We have established an 
Advisory Panel to guide the emerging tourism programme in Copeland, involving a range of 
partners including Cumbria Tourism, LDNPA, Sellafield Ltd, National Trust, Forestry 
Commission, private sector and the Universities of Cumbria and UCLan.  We have issued a 
first newsletter to our tourism businesses and anticipate further links with them through 
workshops and our Annual Tourism Summit.

Connecting Cumbria’s Hidden Coast Programme

Our Connecting Cumbria’s Hidden Coast initiative is progressing well.  We have appointed 
contractors to create a coastal challenge route, which will be delivered in autumn 2020 and 
have appointed an Art Curator to develop the art trail along the coastal route.  The Wheels 
for All initiative is established, and we are currently advertising for the design and build of 
the Silecroft café, which will be due to start in the New Year.

Enterprise Development

We have commissioned the Centre for Regional Economic Development at the University of 
Cumbria to support us in establishing an enterprise development programme.  This first 
phase of baseline research will be available to partners in the New Year.

Town Centre Regeneration:

High Streets Funding

Following confirmation from MHCLG that our Future High Streets Fund Expression of 
Interest (EOI) was successful, we are well under way with the process of developing our 
scheme.  The timescales have been updated to submission of a draft business case by mid-
January with a full business case by the end of April 2020.  The scheme will focus on 
connecting our town centre with the harbour and developing new uses of key buildings and 
reframing our high street from King Street to the harbour side.  We have £150,000 secured 
from MHCLG against the development of the business case and are making an additional 
£50,000 funding application to help match that and provide further capacity.  We have 

Page 32



appointed experienced consultants to support us with the business case development and 
continue to look at opportunities to bring certainty in terms of deliverability of key elements 
of the scheme, as we create the case for capital investment.

Town Deal Funding

In July, we submitted an EOI to Historic England to develop a High Streets Heritage Action 
Zone in Cleator Moor.  The EOI wasn’t successful, but we are now able to bring forward 
elements of the scheme to support the development of a Town Deal Plan.

In September, the government announced that Cleator Moor and Millom had been put 
forward for a Town Deal and that it will soon publish a prospectus setting out the process by 
which applications for funding will be considered.  The prospectus will set out clear and 
robust standards, such as value for money, that government expects proposals to meet in 
order to secure funding.  In the interim, both towns have been asked to submit a Town Deal 
readiness checklist and to form a Town Deal Board by the end of January 2020 and we are 
working with our partners and communities to deliver against key timescales.

Copeland Pride of Place – Town Centre Improvement scheme

The Building Grants scheme has continued to deliver across the Borough and we have now 
awarded 113 building grants, totalling £318,726.  Of those awarded 89 are now complete, 
with the Council paying out £242,719 in grants across our borough, attracting over £368,915 
in private match funds.

The public realm work is paused in Whitehaven to fall in line with timelines against the 
above Future High Streets Funding application.  Schemes for Cleator Moor, Millom and 
Egremont will continue to be discussed and agreed with the Town Councils and localities for 
implementation next year.  

Social Inclusion

Copeland Work & Skills Partnership

The new Copeland Work & Skills Partnership programme is moving at a pace to deliver 
against the six work streams funded by Sellafield Ltd and Copeland Community Fund.  To 
date 12 individuals in existing partner organisations who provide information, advice and 
guidance to clients have started upskilling through NVQs.  Two sector development schemes 
are currently under development and the first wage subsidy placement has been started.  
We are receiving enquiries regarding the employability fund; are evolving the bespoke 
programme and have procured specialist support towards developing the digital agenda in 
work and skills.

The ongoing activity of the Copeland Work & Skills Partnership has significant relevance on 
the wider skills agenda in Cumbria, including the Cumbria LEP Skills Investment Plan and 
Local Industrial Strategy.

Page 33



Climate and Environmental Position Statement 

In May 2019, the Committee on Climate Change (CCC) outlined proposals for the UK 
Government to bring forward legislation to reach net-zero greenhouse gas emissions by the 
year 2050. Subsequently, the UK parliament amended the Climate Change Act of 2008, 
committing the UK to becoming “Net Zero Carbon” by 2050. In April 2019, all Cumbrian local 
authorities formally adopted the Cumbria Joint Public Health Strategy incorporating a 
pledge for Cumbria, “to become a ‘carbon neutral’ County and to mitigate the likely impact 
of existing climate change”.

In December, the Executive Committee will be asked to agree a position statement on 
Climate and the Environment, which has been developed in consultation with departmental 
managers and members of CLT. This Statement does not propose that the Council declares a 
“climate emergency”. Rather, the statement sets out our corporate ambitions and 
community leadership responsibilities in taking meaningful action to reduce our footprint, in 
a sustainable way that stimulates economic growth and creates beneficial outcomes for our 
communities. The full statement is attached as Appendix A.

Page 34



Nuclear and Corporate Services – Deputy Mayor Councillor David Moore

Nuclear Position Statements

In recognition of the role that the nuclear sector plays in Copeland’s economy and 
communities since 2015, the Council has maintained a suite of Nuclear Position Statements. 
These Statements ensure that the Council’s interactions with the nuclear sector consistently 
reflect the Council’s agreed position on nuclear matters.

The Nuclear and Energy team commits to reviewing these statements annually or more 
frequently as required to ensure that they reflect developments in international and 
national policy, publication of new and updated strategies by key industry partners and 
changes locally since the last iteration of the statements.

A review of the statements was prompted by a number of developments in international 
and national policy, publication of new and updated strategies by key industry partners and 
changes locally since the last iteration of the statements.

The process was initiated in June with the consideration by SNEB members of a draft set of 
updated statements. Comments were incorporated and a consolidated set of statements 
presented to SNEB in August. A further workshop was held on 30 September to finalise the 
wording of a number of the statements. Executive agreed the final statements on 4 
November.

Nuclear Projects Updates

The Moorside Project 

Members will recall that Toshiba/NuGeneration Ltd ceased any further development of the 
Moorside Project in March this year, when the site returned to the ownership of the Nuclear 
Decommissioning Authority (NDA). At September Council it was reported that Government 
had launched a consultation process seeking views on proposals for a new funding model 
for large scale nuclear projects, the Regulated Asset Base (RAB).  The new approach was 
proposed in recognition of the difficulties experienced by developers of large-scale nuclear 
power-generation projects in the UK. The Government has concluded that by providing 
regulated returns a RAB model has the potential to reduce the cost of raising private finance 
for new nuclear projects, thereby reducing consumer bills and maximising value for money 
for consumers and taxpayers. The Council submitted a consultation response prior to the 
deadline in October. An announcement by Government is awaited. 

In the introduction to the consultation, Government identifies the important role that 
nuclear power plants play currently, in generating around 20% of our power needs and in 
the future to meet growing demands and contribute to our targets around zero greenhouse-
gas emissions by 2050. The document states that Government ‘should be prepared to 
support further new nuclear projects in the years ahead, if they can be delivered at a 
competitive price and each individual project represents value for money’.

Page 35



Also at the September meeting it was reported that consultants from Oxford Brookes 
University had been appointed by the New Nuclear Local Authorities Group (NNLAG) to 
carry out a ‘Longitudinal Study’ of the economic impacts of Hinkley Point C power station 
development. Members may recall that the Council agreed to be a contributing partner to 
the study which will provide useful learning and recommendations for future NNB projects, 
and will be helpful to us if/when the Moorside project comes back on stream.  It could also 
be relevant for other NSIPs and major projects. The final draft of the report has been 
prepared and is expected to be published in December. 

Finally, publication by Government of a revised National Policy Statement (NPS) for new 
nuclear power stations to cover the period 2026 to 2035 is still awaited. The NPS as well as 
providing the planning and development guidance for developers to develop their proposals 
for a Development Consent Order application and the Planning Inspectorate to assess those 
applications, should also confirm the nomination of the Moorside for inclusion within the 
range of sites expected to be deployed within this period.

Geological Disposal Infrastructure Siting Process

Members will recall that in December of last year, Government published the policy 
document ‘Working with Communities: long term management of higher activity radioactive 
wastes’, which explains how Government will engage with local authorities and 
communities throughout the siting process, to find a willing community and a suitable site 
for a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF). Since then a number of briefing sessions have been 
held with Members to explore the details of the new process, including one in July when 
officials from Radioactive Waste Management (RWM) Ltd attended and the most recent 
held in October with officials from the Committee on Radioactive Waste Management 
(CoRWM).  

The aim of the NPS is to:

1) Guide the developer (RWM Ltd) in preparing any application for development 
consent;

2) Guide the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) to consider the application; and
3) Provide the framework to allow the Secretary of State to consider the 

recommendation from PINS and make a decision on the Development Consent 
Application.  

This NPS was formally designated by government on 2 October.

Members are advised that the wording of the Council’s position on the long-term 
management of higher activity radioactive wastes has been updated, as follows:

“The Council acknowledges that the UK government’s policy for safe management of 
higher activity radioactive wastes is the provision of a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF). 
As host community for the vast majority of wastes that are identified in the Working 
With Communities (WWC) Policy for disposal to GDF, we will continue to press 
government to make progress.

Page 36



“At this stage, the Council has no preference with regard to the location of the GDF 
locally or nationally, but we recognise that Copeland’s community, as current host 
community of the majority of the intended inventory, is affected regardless of the final 
choice of site for a GDF. Therefore, the Council should be acknowledged and treated as 
current host community for the waste inventory by UK government, NDA and RWM 
throughout the WWC and Site Evaluation process.

“The Council takes the view that safety and security of the facility must take precedence 
over other considerations including timescales for delivery. However, the Council 
believes that clarity should be provided on the likely timescale for availability of a 
potential future GDF.

“The Council considers the lack of clarity in the Implementing Geological Disposal: 
Working With Communities policy regarding the status of the inventory and its 
retrievability to be a blocker to effective community engagement in the process.
“In light of recent developments in NDA Strategy, the Council acknowledges that some, 
but not all, of the inventory may be managed via supplementary options.”

Future Missions

Small Modular Reactors (UK SMR)

UK government has awarded £18m of Industrial Strategy Challenge Funding to the UK SMR 
consortium, led by Rolls Royce, to develop their design towards commercial deployment. 
The government funding will be matched by the consortium partners.

On 22 August Copeland’s MP, Nuclear Portfolio Holder and Nuclear Sector Development 
Manager met with representatives from the UK SMR project, along with Britain’s Energy 
Coast Business Cluster (BECBC) and supply chain representatives. Since, UK SMR presented 
their project at the BECBC Global Reach conference on 6 November and have returned to 
Cumbria for a further meeting to discuss siting requirements.

Advanced Modular Reactors

There has been a delay to the announcement of the technology vendors who will progress 
to Phase 2 of the government’s Advanced Modular Reactor competition, which was 
expected in June. Council officers continue to engage and will provide an update. One of the 
vendors in the competition, SEALER UK, is working with TSP Engineering in Workington to 
develop their technology.

Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board (SNEB) 

The October meeting of the Board was cancelled due to a clash with the West Cumbria Site 
Stakeholder Group spent fuels and nuclear materials subgroup. The next meeting shall take 
place at 2pm on 17 December 2019, including presentations from the Nuclear 

Page 37



Decommissioning Authority and Sellafield Ltd on their respective Integrates Waste 
Strategies.

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) Updates

NDA Socio-Economic Strategy

As part of the response to the report of the Government’s Public Accounts Committee, the 
NDA have committed to preparing a revised socio-economic strategy. The Council has been 
engaged in the process directly and via the Nuclear Legacy Advisory Forum, and a draft 
strategy is expected by January 2020 for consultation.

NDA Business Plan

It is expected that the NDA’s business plan for 2020-2023 will be published for consultation 
before the end of the year. The Council’s response will be developed through consultation 
with members of the Strategic Nuclear & Energy Board.

NDA Integrated Waste Management Theme Overview Group

On 13 November, the Council’s Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager attended the 
NDA’s Integrated Waste Management Theme Overview Group which heard updates from 
BEIS officials on proposals to develop a national Nuclear Decommissioning and Radioactive 
Waste Policy and plans from the NDA to develop their Strategy 4. Both documents will be 
subject to future stakeholder consultation and reported to a future meeting of SNEB.

Sellafield Updates

Sellafield Ltd Transformation Programme

Officers continue to work alongside Sellafield colleagues on a range of initiatives to ensure 
that the impacts of Transformation on the local economy and local communities are 
minimised and the opportunities for future business opportunities and diversification are 
maximised

Programme and Project Partners

On 9 November, three initial major construction projects on the Sellafield site formally 
transitioned onto the PPP framework. These are the Site Ion Exchange Effluent Plant (SIXEP) 
Contingency Plant (SCP), Replacement Analytical Project (RAP) and Sellafield Retreatment 
Plant (SRP).

Brexit Readiness

Sellafield Ltd.’s Head of Policy met with Council officers to provide an update on the 
company’s preparations for Brexit, including Nuclear Safeguards, exit from the Euratom 
Treaty and potential impact on people, supply chain, goods and services. Sellafield has a 

Page 38



Brexit Action Team available to respond to emergent issues 24/7 and a Brexit Resilience 
Plan is in place to address a potential no-deal exit scenario.

The exit from Euratom Treaty is a nuclear -industry specific aspect. Principally this covers 
Nuclear Materials Accountancy and Control and some aspects covering transport, 
import/export of technologies, and consideration of the possible effects on member States 
of developments on a nuclear site. The UK has created a new system of Accountancy and 
Safeguards Regulation within the Office for Nuclear Regulation. All these provisions are 
available for immediate deployment in the event of Brexit or a No-Deal Exit.

Sustainability Report

On 25 October, for the first time, Sellafield Ltd has published a Sustainability Report which 
highlights safety and social impact performance in 2018/19. The full report is available via 
the following link:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/annual-review-of-sustainability-201819.  

Integrated Waste Strategy

Reflecting the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority’s Integrated Waste Management 
Strategy published earlier this year, Sellafield Ltd has developed an Integrated Waste 
Strategy. This symbolises a shift in focus from reprocessing operations to decommissioning 
and remediation, whereby containerised waste will become the main product produced by 
the site. Sellafield’s Head of Integrated Waste Management has been invited to present this 
strategy to SNEB in December.

LLWR Update 

The programme for decommissioning the PCM facilities at LLWR is complete

 Work has commenced on the demolition of the Magazine Retrieval Facilities
 The programme to cap and close the north end of the trenches and Vault 8 is 

continuing
 At the end of October 11,514 m3 of Low Level Waste had been diverted from the 

LLWR (98%); with over 8978m3 of VLLW being sent to permitted landfill
 The National Waste Programme has continued to make progress on delivery of the 

FY 2019/0 programme of work

On 19th November, the Council’s Nuclear Sector Development Manager attended the 
National Waste Programme blueprint workshop, a chance for stakeholders to input to the 
direction of the programme to 2030.

Page 39

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/annual-review-of-sustainability-201819


Other Updates

Having helped to facilitate a workshop on 4th September to bring together local technology 
companies to understand the challenges to innovation in the nuclear sector, the Council’s 
Nuclear Sector Development Manager has contributed to an output report that will provide 
a local perspective to the work of the Nuclear Sector Deal Waste Management and 
Decommissioning Research & Development subgroup, to meet the UK’s legacy cost 
reduction targets.

The Council’s Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager presented on the partnership 
approach to the Sellafield Transformation at Global Reach 2019 a conference led by the 
Britain’s Energy Coast Business Cluster Shadow Board. The event brought together nuclear 
regions and clusters from around the world to form collaborations aimed at positioning 
nuclear communities to contribute to a clean energy future.

On 7 November the Council’s Nuclear Sector Development Manager was ratified as a 
Chartered Nuclear Engineer by the Engineering Council.

Human Resources Update

The key activities within the Section since September 2019 has been:
Support to the Management of Change Process

Area Update
Corporate 
Leadership Team

Consultation is complete and key roles have been assimilated.  
Currently recruiting for the Head of Operations and Commercial 
Services.

Information 
Communications 
Technology (ICT)

Consultation has been completed and assimilation and request for 
voluntary redundancy agreed.  Currently recruiting for 2 ICT Lead 
Roles.

Finance Consultation is complete and Deputy 151 role is to be advertised.
Housing Consultation is complete and assimilation to roles will be completed 

in the new year pending an early retirement.

Vacancy Management

There has been key recruitment activity for 11 positions in operational areas of the Beacon, 
Customer Services, Development Management, Economic and Community Regeneration, 
Strategic Planning, Waste and ICT.  

Review of Human Resources Policies and Processes

We are currently working on the development of an Agile Working Policy with a proposed 
implementation date of January 2020. As there is a need to review our policies a policy 
working group will be established to gain momentum and drive to refresh our policies.

Page 40



Embedding the Aim High Process

The People Strategy has been agreed and the Council has now a clear direction for 
development of their employees.  The Council has delivered learning and development since 
September focused on increasing skills within health and safety and Safeguarding.  The next 
quarter is additional Safeguarding training and Effective Team Working embedding the 5 P’s 
behaviours.  Aiming Higher (our performance management process) will be launched in 
January 2020 and therefore all Aim Higher documentation has been reviewed in this period.

HRIS System Project Update

We have now identified three possible providers with the main aim of gaining a system that 
is fit for purpose and value for money.  In addition, we have a established a working 
relationship with Allerdale Borough Council as they have similar requirements and therefore 
working in partnership will encourage economies of scale within this project.

Staff Survey Update

Results from the staff survey were positive and gave excellent benchmarking for future 
years.  Workforce briefs then took place to inform all employees of key points raised from 
the Survey.  There were management facilitated sessions planned for 5th December 2019 to 
develop an action plan for implementation of any suggestions raised within the survey.

Maintaining a Safe Environment

The Project Plan has now been developed to achieve ISO 45001. The project team is being 
established to develop and drive this agenda.  Training is to take place on 17 December 
2019 for Health Advocates to drive the Health and Wellbeing Agenda.

Electoral and Democratic Services

Annual Canvass

The Electoral Registration Annual Canvass is now complete, with 92.6% of households 
responding to the Household Enquiry Forms. 

Publication of the 2020 Electoral Register was due on 1 December 2019 however, due to the 
Parliamentary General Election taking place on 12 December 2019, the publication has been 
delayed and will now be published on 1 February 2020. 

Polling District Review

The review of polling districts and polling places, as required under Section 18 of the 
Representation of the People Act 1983 is now complete. 

Page 41



A number of recommendations were agreed by the Electoral Review Panel, for both polling 
districts and polling stations.  Changes will be implemented to polling districts in January 
ahead of the publication of the 2020 Electoral Register, and changes to polling station will 
come into effect for the Police and Crime Commissioner Elections in May 2020.

All final changes will be published and issued to all members in January 2020.

Environment and Place – Councillor Michael McVeigh

Strategic Housing

Homelessness

Strategy Update

The team has completed its review of the Council’s Homelessness Strategy and full Council 
recently approved the new document.  The Strategy is about to go to print and will be 
launched in January at the Copeland Housing Partnership forum. 

The three key objectives for this new 5-year strategy are:

• Reduce levels of hidden homelessness – including sofa surfers
• Prioritise homeless prevention - avoiding people becoming homeless in first place
• Ensure appropriate accommodation - especially for those hard to reach, higher risk 

people

A detailed action plan will support the strategy and governance of its delivery will be 
through OSC and the Copeland Housing Partnership.

New Initiatives funded by MHCLG

MHCLG has started to work actively with the Cumbria Homeless Forum and is facilitating 
funding across the County for a number of new initiative.  MHCLG is encouraging Cumbria 
County Council and all six Districts towards a model of joint working at a strategic level.   As a 
result of this there are two new projects, bringing in new external funding to Copeland, that 
have recently been launched.  These new approaches, working jointly with the other districts 
and County help the Council achieves the above strategic objectives:

1) The Rough Sleeper Initiative: This is part of a countywide initiative with funding from the 
MHCLH.  Whilst Cumbria has very low numbers of visible street homeless people we do 
have a lot of hidden homeless people (known as sofa suffers) and also people who are 
not suitable for current supported accommodation, such as Calderwood or Whitehaven 
Community Trust, due to their high risk or challenging behaviour.

This funding has provided a Rough Sleeper Worker, whose patch stretches across 
Allerdale and Copeland because the clients often move between the two.  They are 
working in our homeless team and will move between the areas in response to need, 

Page 42



rather than fixed days.  Their role will be to provide outreach on the ground but also to 
map provision and develop plans to fill the gaps and help set up new solutions with our 
partner agencies.

2) Rapid Rehousing Pathway: Again, via MHCLG monies, this funding stream will bring over 
£60,000 to Copeland to fund floating support workers for 1 year.  The money will be used 
to support people moving from temporary homeless accommodation into long-term 
tenancies.  The work will provide intensive ongoing support to ensure the person has the 
skills and motivation to make their tenancy sustainable and successful.  There will also be 
some limited funds available to incentivise landlords, e.g. rent up front through the 
Councils homeless prevention funding.  

The Governments strategic objective is that those tenancies are in the private sector and 
they have set targets around that.  We are working with Time to Change and Whitehaven 
Community Trust, both of who are experts in providing supported housing services to 
deliver this project.  This should enable people to move through temporary provision 
more speedily thus freeing up spaces for new referrals including sofa surfers.

National Rough Sleeper Count

All Councils in England carried out a Rough Sleeper Count on one night this month as 
required by Government; Copeland had one person.  This person was recently evicted due 
to extreme ASB and is a substance abuser.  The Homeless team are dealing with this case.  
In terms of comparison last year, 2018/19 no one was found to be street homeless on the 
day in question.  In 2017/18 we had one rough sleeper who is now in a home group tenancy 
with on-going support from our Temporary Accommodation Officer (a fixed term post 
through a previous funding stream).

Domestic Abuse 

We know that one of the top three reasons for people becoming homeless in Copeland is 
relationship breakdown.  In a high number of these cases domestic abuse, including physical 
abuse, financial abuse and coercive control is a major factor.  For the past two years, the 
Council has benefited from external funding for a specialist role who has supported over 70 
individuals and families.  In recent months the WOW (Women Out West) Centre has opened 
and this role compliments that project.  WOW statistics show that Domestic Abuse remains 
a huge issue for our communities with more and more people coming forward as victims.  
The Council has this year opened a third domestic abuse safe house for those fleeing 
domestic abuse.

The funding for the Councils role was due to end in December 2019 and for the past 6 
months the team have been trying hard to secure alternative funds to continue this vital 
work.  We are delighted to announce that funding for 3 years has been secured from 
Sellafield and CCF and we are very grateful for their support.

Page 43



Empty Homes 

Success

Since April of this year the figure stands at 60 properties, 39 of which were vacant for over 2 
years and 21 from 6 months up to two years.  One of the visual successes is the property 
next to the Copeland Centre on Irish Street, which was sold at auction as a result of our 
officer’s persistence and determination to get the owner to act.  

One recent addition to the tools used by our Empty Homes Officer is improved access to and 
support around the auction process.  Many empty homeowners in Copeland are just at a 
loss to know what to do with their properties, uncertain of the processes involved, it 
becomes too onerous and so they postpone acting and property remains empty.  Our empty 
homes officer can offer advice and support and the auction houses are offering reduced 
rates for people who the council is working with.  Take up of this approach is one of the 
reasons for the improved figures we have seen over the past year.

Challenges

Whist it is not a statutory requirement in itself to reduce empty homes and we receive no 
direct funding from Government as we do with Homelessness, there are powers available to 
the council to tackle the problem.  Funding and staff resources are now in place presently to 
meet the cost of the specialist role but not for the enforcement activity. We are seeking a 
budget to enable targeted intervention, incentives and legal enforcement action where all 
other attempts to get owners to engage positively has failed.  We are exploring options to 
put a proposal forward regarding outsourcing some of this enforcement and legal work on a 
no/low fee basis.

Community Led Housing (CLH) & Empty Homes

The CLH Advisory Group that comprises key stakeholders, officers and members, is 
overseeing a project around empty homes.  The group wishes to explore how we can bring 
empty homes into use under a community led model.  The aim would be to provide 
accommodation for local people with a need for affordable housing, or for young people 
such as graduates and key workers coming to work in the area.  Our officers and delivery 

Page 44



partners ACT are working with interested groups in Whitehaven and Millom at present and 
we will be feeding these ideas in to the Town Deals Fund and Future High Street funding 
bids.

Inclusive Communities – Councillor Gwynneth Everett

Sports and Leisure Update

Our leisure contractors continue to provide services targeted at health and wellbeing needs 
in our communities.  The planning for the two facility improvements is ongoing i.e. 

 Cleator Moor Activity Centre outdoor pitch which has received a commitment from 
Cleator Moor Town Council of £25,000 to the development along with our shared 
commitment with GLL as part of the contract and;

 Whitehaven Sports Centre where the links with health, library and other sports and 
fitness groups is shaping the tweaks to the design and funding applications.

GLL have facilitated the Wheels for All hub now set up at the Copeland Stadium as the first 
deliverable of the Hidden Coast programme and are working with our work and skills 
partnership re the employability initiative around access to sport.

The sports strategy has been successfully tendered with an expectation of our facilities audit 
and new strategy including play and playing fields being drafted and signed off in quarter 4.

Health and Well Being 

The Health and Wellbeing Forum continues to be an open forum and is well attended at its 
quarterly meeting.  The Council is progressing its two-year social prescribing project working 
with our community and voluntary groups.  This initiative is one of the key priorities of the 
Copeland Forum and is connecting strongly with health and care providers and the 
Integrated Care Communities in both Millom and Copeland North.

Social inclusion 

Well Whitehaven Public Consultation

The Well Whitehaven Partnership has been formed to deliver a programme of projects 
under the banner of Well North, which aims to improve the health and wellbeing of people, 
their families and communities, by making the previously ‘invisible’, ‘visible’ to deliver three 
strategic goals:

a) Addressing inequality by improving the health of the poorest, fastest;
b) Increasing resilience at individual, household and community levels; and
c) Reducing levels of unemployment, a cause and effect of poor health.

Page 45



RESIDENTS from Mirehouse and Corkickle are invited to discuss the results of a recent 
community consultation.  More than 100 residents from the area shared what mattered to 
them through a survey and a World Cafe event held in August.  Thorough the consultation 
residents identified some of the things that were important to them as:

• More activities for older teens
• Eradicating litter problems  
• Increased bus services
• More information on available services
• Creating safer communities

We are now in the process of bringing issues mentioned within the consultation to the 
table, and working with the community to create opportunities and solutions led by the 
residents.  It is a chance for the community to work with us to develop the areas of need 
and ensure the community continues to thrive

Beacon Museum 

Exhibitions

Summer programme 2019

The Beacon has had a strong summer of visitors due to working with a national Museum on 
two Norse/Viking exhibitions.  The exhibitions were hired from York Archaeological Trust 
(Jorvik) and involved a wide range of linked activities for both local and tourist visitors.

The Golden Age of Satire? is on show until 12th January.  Another National collaboration, this 
is a Spotlight Loan from the British Museum.  Showing alongside rare and unique satirical 
prints from Georgian times lent to us from the British Museum Collections are 
reproductions of a number of documents from Cumbria/Whitehaven Archives Service and 
original objects and documents from our Beacon collections.  The exhibition has received 
good attention and was officially opened by Ian Hislop, who curated the full exhibition in 
London based British Museum accompanied by the project Curator from the British 
Museum.  This was followed by a sold out “Conversation” event where Ian Hislop spoke 
about his selection of the works and the role of Satire in political and social dissent.  

No Strangers to Satire - A Whitehaven Festival of Satire is also being held in conjunction with 
the exhibition with a range of Guest Speakers from University of Lancaster, University of 
Newcastle and other local discussions.   We have used external funding to set up an artistic 
residency project completing in December titled “Satire In Motion” where Cumbria- based 
illustrator Susanna Harbach will be working alongside the public in a satire-themed artistic 
residency in the Beacon Museum.  During this project, Susanna will create a satirical account 
of Whitehaven’s history. This will appear in a bespoke moving display piece that the public 
will be able to interact with for years to come. 

Page 46



Other events in the run up to Christmas include: 

 Over 16 storytelling and music - Eerie Cumbria at the Beacon Museum
 Cumbrian Songs and Stories at Christmas: with Steve Wharton
 Santa visiting the Museum each weekend from 30th November to 30th December.  
 “The Actual Factual Christmas Trail” – this new interactive trail takes children 

around the museum ending with a visit to and gift from Santa.

2020 Programme:

The exhibition programme for 2020 is complete and the publicity leaflet is being prepared.

Exhibitions include: Phil Rigby (Award winning photographer for Cumbria Life); “Bears (on 
loan from National Storytelling centre); Beacon Maritime collection; West Coast Photo 
(collaboration with Signal media); Cumbria Printmakers; Celia Burbrush and colleagues 
(Artists) who appeared in the recent BBC TV series “Home is where the Art is”), “Medieval 
Medicine”, “Eating In” (on the theme of healthy eating and wellbeing) and the international 
Wildlife Photographer of the Year from the Natural History Museum – always a winner for 
interest. 

Museum Collections

We have a new Trainee Assistant Curator, Alexander (Alex) Milner who joined us in 
September on a two year contract.

Recent acquisitions include memorabilia from the recently disbanded Whitehaven Lions, a 
portrait of Mrs Elizabeth Dixon by J D Kenworthy from Mr Ben Walker (who generously also 
funded the conservation and framing of the portrait) and the Iron–age sword discovered 
near Irton by a metal detectorist and awarded to the museum by the Treasure Trove panel. 
The acquisition and conservation of the sword was made possible with generous funding 
from the Friends for the Beacon Museum along with the creation of a replica for handling 
and education purposes.   The Digital Pathway project will included digital imaging and 
interpretation of the sword in a bespoke case in the permanent gallery display on floor 3. 

 Digital Museum Pathway

Our digital interpretation and experiences in the permanent exhibitions project is underway 
with grant funding from Sellafield Ltd and the Rural Payments Agency, European 
development funding.   The project being delivered by commissioned specialists includes 
Virtual Reality, 3D interpretation, digital interpretation, and a digital town trail for visitors to 
follow.   An updated, digitised, interactive Weather Station is also included to replace the 
worn–out much loved interactive weather station. Paul Mooney, TV weather presenter, has 
expressed interest in recording an introduction to this for us.  The project is divided into two 
phases, the first being completed by May 2020 and the second by December 2020.  

Page 47



Free Weekends to ensure inclusive access to the Beacon

The Copeland Pass is being phased out as at less than 10% it has not had the community 
take up that had been hoped.  Those with existing passes will be able to continue to use 
them until they expire.  The Museum will, instead, offer two free weekends for Copeland 
residents: one in the Spring as part of Science Week and one in the Autumn linked to 
Heritage open days.  

Quality Feedback

The quality of the Beacon Museum visitor experience has yet again been highlighted and 
celebrated.  A recent peer review by Museum Development Yorkshire, Museum 
Development North West and Museum Development North East provided a strong quality 
and visitor experience high marks as the recent Visit England feedback had earlier in the 
year.   The welcome, accessibility, contact arrangements, first impression, customer service 
were all given top marks.  For all the overall impression of the Museum, the exhibitions, 
interpretation, engagement with children and families through the Museum were excellent.   
The Beacon Museum has long been recognised as a quality small Museum focused on local 
history with strong interactive exhibits and space.   Areas for improvement were re café 
offer and the shop’s merchandising.   We are preparing and working with a complementary 
cultural facility on a development partnership re the café area with pop up testing during 
December 2019 in line with events in the Museum.  It is anticipated that the café space will 
be back in delivery that works more effectively with the Museum exhibitions by Spring 2020.   
The merchandising approach is regularly reviewed and the comments have been taken on 
as we restock for our new exhibitions.

Page 48



Commercial Services – Councillor Steven Morgan

Parks & Open Spaces 

Grounds Maintenance 

As the grass-cutting season ends, the Parks team will now focussed on delivering a range of 
winter works including pruning, planting and mulching works on council owned green 
spaces, and on delivering a similar programme of winter works for a number of our external 
customers including schools, churches, Parish and Town Councils.  The team is also 
supporting the Council’s arborist with carrying out a programme of tree maintenance works 
across the borough between November and February.  This work programme is prioritised 
from a risk based tree survey carried out in 2018 and ensures our resources are focussed 
where works are needed most. This includes making safe any trees damaged during adverse 
weather conditions.

Bereavement Services Investment Project: 

Following the successful completion of the first phase of works at Distington Hall 
Crematorium to install a second cremator and other ancillary equipment, the project team 
is now in the process of evaluating tenders submitted for carrying out the building 
modification and improvement works.  This works package aims to enhance the facilities for 
visitors to the crematorium and significantly improve the operational areas within the 
building.  It is currently anticipated that a preferred contractor will be selected before the 
end of December, allowing the estimated 26-week programme of works to begin in January 
2020.  

The project team communicates regularly with our key stakeholders on each stage of the 
project and on other service improvements.  This approach will continue in advance of any 
building works to ensure that any disruptions to service delivery are minimised during this 
complex stage of the project.  The latest copy of our bi-monthly Bereavement Services 
bulletin featuring other service updates can be found here.  

Cemetery Maintenance & Improvements

This year the Parks team were able to increase the frequency of grass cutting at Whitehaven 
and Hensingham cemeteries through partnership working and additional funding from 
Whitehaven Town Council.  A dedicated team delivered this service throughout the season 
resulting in an overall improvement in standards with positive feedback received from 
visitors to the cemetery.   Discussions are already advanced to repeat this arrangement in 
2020.   Other cemetery works planned during the forthcoming winter period include the 
development of additional cremation plots at Hensingham Cemetery and boundary fence 
repairs for Whitehaven Cemetery at Meadow Road.

Page 49

https://mailchi.mp/34b38d892fa5/copeland-chat-january-2480597?e=0d3de83f14


Memorial Services

Distington Hall Crematorium will host its second annual Christmas event on Wednesday, 
December 18 at 6pm.  The event, which will invite guests to light a candle or attach a 
message tag to the Christmas tree in memory of a loved one,  will include carols, music, 
readings  followed by light refreshments.  This event follows a successful memorial service 
in October to mark Baby Loss Awareness week. 

Community Engagement

In September, the Parks team led two naturalised bulb-planting events at Meadow Road 
and Mirehouse Road.  These events were part of our partnership work with Get Cumbria 
Buzzing – a project aimed at reversing the decline of pollinators across North West Cumbria 
and led by Cumbria Wildlife Trust.  Working with local volunteers native daffodils, 
snowdrops and blue bells were planted in support of the project’s aims.  

Following an invitation from Well Whitehaven, the team was represented at the World Café 
event at Mirehouse Football club in October where we were able to engage with other 
partner agencies and speak directly to local residents on the services provided by the Parks 
& Open Spaces team.   We also returned to Mayfield School in Whitehaven to take part in a 
World of Work day in October to showcase some of the plant and machinery that we use to 
maintain our green space assets across Copeland, and to talk about the variety of roles 
within the team.  These discussions involved young people from nursery age groups to 
students at college.  In November, the team also supported an event with the Rotary Club 
where purple flowering crocus bulbs were planted on grassland adjacent to the Beacon 
Museum to highlight the organisation’s aim to end Polio. 

Recycling Update November 2019

Schools engagement

Edna the elephant, our recycling mascot is proving to be a significant hit with adults and 
schoolchildren across Copeland. She and Jan Boniface our lead officer on recycling attended 
a number of high profile local public events during the summer and they are now part way 
through an autumn and winter tour of schools in the Borough.

All schools in Copeland have been offered an opportunity to host the elephant and to 
participate in either a recycling assembly or smaller group workshops on recycling and the 
impact of plastic on the environment. The response has been really good and three schools 
have already hosted Edna for a week and taken part in assemblies and workshops with Jan.  
A further three schools are booked in before Christmas and more are planned through to 
the end of February 2020.

Page 50



Bring Sites

The planned withdrawal of the non-productive small recycling bring sites across the 
Borough is now almost complete. Containers have been removed from the sites and work is 
underway to remove any remaining signage and posts. All of the sites are being cleared of 
any litter and detritus and returned to their former state. All of the serviceable containers 
will be refurbished and repurposed as commercial waste bins. The focus in 2020 will be on 
improving the remaining large bring sites. The team take delivery of a new hookloader 
vehicle in early December, replacing the ageing vehicle that services the large skip sized 
recycling banks. A programme will also be developed (as far as the budget allows) to 
refurbish those large banks ensuring the remaining recycling sites look and operate as well 
as they can for those who use them.

Commercial Update

Commercial Strategy 2019-2023

Since the approval of the new strategy in September, the commercial team have been 
moving the delivery plan forward to implement three further foundation elements.  The My 
Bright Ideas campaign was launched in October. This will encourage staff members from 
across the organisation to complete and submit ideas postcards on how the Council can 
increase net revenue generation through income and efficiency savings. 

The Commercial Engagement Group has now been formed, with the inaugural meeting held 
in October. Consisting of 12 Officers from across CBC, the group will support the delivery for 
the Commercial Strategy. As an action based group, it will assess, filter, suggest and develop 
ideas to drive the commercialisation ambition forward.

A Commercial Skills Training programme is in the process of being developed with HR to 
compliment the Aim High process. In the meantime, two further training courses for officers 
will be delivered in November: Developing Commercial Awareness, and, Alternative Service 
Delivery models.

Plans are also underway to deliver commercial awareness and strategy training to all 
Members in early 2020.

Procurement

The past few months have seen an increase in the use of the service, with the adoption of 
the revised Contract Standing Orders at Council on 9th September 2019.

Procurement have successfully tendered a number of contracts to ensure value for money 
and compliance with regulations. One of the more significant re-tenders being the 
Authority’s insurance provision, which has achieved an ongoing annual saving of £135k.  

Page 51



Other successfully completed tenders include: 
 Evaluation of the Copeland Community Fund operation and impact (on behalf of 

Copeland Communities Fund Board)
 Design of a challenge event in the Copeland Borough (as part of Connecting 

Cumbria’s Hidden Coast Programme)
 Research and development of employability online support tools
 Art curator for the development of a public art programme on the Copeland coast
 A borough wide housing needs survey
 Development of a sports and physical activity strategy and priorities (in conjunction 

with Greenwich Leisure Ltd and Active Cumbria)

Current tenders that are in the process of being evaluated include:
 Alteration and refurbishment works at Distington Hall Crematorium
 External valuation services to undertake asset valuations of Council owned property 

2019/20

Future scheduled projects include:
 Collaborative working with neighbouring authority, Allerdale Borough Council, on a 

potential joint procurement for replacement combined Finance, Payroll and Human 
Resources systems. This joint procurement approach will ensure optimisation of 
best practice, facilitate an enhanced contract negotiation position, potentially 
reduce annual software maintenance and support costs, and, give both Council’s 
resilience in knowledge and operation;     

 Looking at frameworks for the replacement of multi-functional digital devices across 
the authority, mobile phone provision for Councillors and Officers, mail services and 
payment collection services for residents;  

 Preparing to advertise the provision of a green waste composting service.

The contracts register continues to be maintained and updated, and is published quarterly 
for information. Each procurement is being proactively managed to ensure value for money 
combined with quality of delivery and service to the Council.

Page 52



Full Council 161219
Item 8 Appendix A 

Climate & Environment Position Statement Final Draft

Copeland Borough Council recognises that the climate crisis represents a human-made threat and is 
already having far-reaching, irreversible effects on populations, places, economies, society and the 
natural environment, locally, nationally and globally. We welcome the British Government’s 
amendment to the Climate Change Act of 2008, which commits to a Net Zero Carbon UK by 2050, and 
Cumbria County Council’s corresponding commitment to a Net Zero Carbon target for the County.

However, more must also be done to combat the human-made ecological crisis that is as much a 
threat. We are seeing unprecedented rates of species extinction and consumption rates that far 
outstrip the ability of the planet to replenish natural resources – the date at which this occurs each 
year is known as “Earth Overshoot Day”, which in 2019 occurred on 29th July, the earliest ever.

The effects of these crises will be felt differently in different places. Copeland has already borne 
witness to early damaging effects of climate change; flooding of local towns, generally wetter 
conditions with dry summer spells, and extreme weather events, which to date have been minor in 
comparison to some of the global impacts. Such effects will become more frequent and severe. The 
UK will continue to get hotter and wetter, which has implications for public health, resilience, food 
security, land and water management, infrastructure, tourism, energy security and even national 
security. What is certain is that climate change is happening and will get worse. We all must take action 
now to minimise the danger and maximise the benefits.

Copeland takes pride in hosting a UNESCO World Heritage Site, the Lake District National Park, other 
natural assets including the Heritage Coast, and sites of strategic national importance, which should 
be protected and preserved. Since the first commercial nuclear electricity generation at Calder Hall in 
1956, Copeland has contributed to the UK’s green economy. Now, world-leading environmental 
restoration capability is being developed in cleaning up the Sellafield site – a site that will continue to 
support low-carbon electricity generation around the UK for decades to come. There is great potential 
for Copeland, as Centre of Nuclear Excellence at the heart of Britain’s Energy Coast, to support future 
clean energy missions to sustainably power the nation.

Copeland Borough Council has already taken steps to reduce our community and corporate 
environmental impact, including implementing a kerbside recycling scheme for residents, reducing 
the carbon footprint of our operational fleet and estate and increasing the biodiversity of our open 
spaces, but we know we must do much, much more: to protect our rural, coastal environment; to 
influence sustainable practices across the industries that operate here; and as home to the Lake 
District National Park, England’s highest peak and the natural coastline, we can show millions of 
tourists what a sustainable future looks like.

We commit to maximising the benefits that will come from combating, and developing resilience to, 
these crises and in doing so developing a sustainable economy. We will weave sustainability into the 
way we make decisions and this will not be seen as an add-on only if we can afford it. In the short 
term, this will require a necessary mind-set shift and behavioural change, with the intention to deliver 
lasting positive social, economic and environmental outcomes in Copeland and beyond.

Page 53



Full Council 161219
Item 8 Appendix A 

We recognise that we must act with immediate effect if we are to secure a sustainable future beyond 
the next century, and that this mission is bigger than any personal, corporate or political agenda. We 
commit to taking meaningful collective action to reduce our footprint, in a sustainable way that 
stimulates economic growth and creates beneficial outcomes for our communities, by:

Corporate Ambitions

 Building sustainability into the core of our policy framework and decision making processes, 
expanding our approach to full lifecycle considerations and implementing best practice;

 Assessing the opportunity for the Council to use its assets and estate to drive beneficial 
environmental outcomes;

 Publicly articulating, within appropriate plans and strategies, the commitment to achieve a 
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions from our own authority's operations, especially energy 
sourcing and use, travel and transport, waste production and disposal and the purchasing of 
goods and services;

 Publically articulating, within appropriate plans and strategies, the commitment to increase 
biodiversity and protect the environment.

Community Leadership

 Working with central government and neighbouring Councils to contribute to the carbon-
reduction targets set out in the UK Carbon Budget and at County level;

 Actively engaging with support networks including the Cumbria Climate Action Group, and 
Local Authority Climate Policy Group to work together towards this common goal;

 Developing plans and supporting projects with our partners and local communities to 
progressively address the causes and the impacts of climate change and environmental 
damage, according to our local priorities, securing maximum benefit for our communities;

 Acting as a supportive partner to local community organisations, businesses and homeowners 
in taking mutually beneficial climate and environment action;

 Helping our residents to understand the challenge and take action.

Copeland Borough Council is a small local authority, under pressure to deliver quality of service within 
ever-constrained budgets. However, we recognise that, while we may not be able to wholly deliver 
the above commitments within our current capability and capacity, this is our ambition and 
responsibility. So, we will find new ways to continue delivering the services that our residents and 
communities expect from us, while striving to deliver the ambitious commitments made in this 
statement.

Page 54



Council 161219
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

REPORT FROM: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
LEAD OFFICER: Julie Betteridge, Director of Customer and 

Community Services
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO COUNCIL?

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are updating the Council on their 
activities to improve the visibility and accountability of the Committee.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Council are recommended to:

(a) Note the update from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The House of Commons Communities and Local Government Committee 
report on the Effectiveness of Local Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
recommended that the visibility and accountability of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees (OSC) be improved.

1.2 The OSC recommended that the Committee report quarterly to the 
Council on their activities culminating in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Annual Report at the Council’s first meeting of the municipal 
year.

1.3 The Executive agreed the recommendations at their meeting on 20th 
March 2018. This report is the update to Council from the OSC for Quarter 
2 of 2019/20.

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



2.0 HIGHLIGHTS

2.1 Voluntary Living Wage Task and Finish Group
Copeland Borough Council formally adopted the Voluntary Living Wage 
in April 2013. The Voluntary Living Wage Task and Finish Group was 
created to ensure that the Council gained accreditation from the Living 
Wage Foundation. The Council was accredited on 10th May 2019. 

2.1.1 The Group’s report contained a number of recommendations such as 
setting the aspiration for Copeland to become a Living Wage Borough 
and to work with Sellafield to achieve this aim. These recommendations 
were presented to the Executive at their meeting on 4th November 2019 
and at that meeting two of the recommendations were rejected and 
asked to be reviewed by OSC. These recommendations shall be brought 
back to the Committee at their next meeting on 21st November 2019.

2.2 Recycling Review Task and Finish Group
The Recycling Review Task and Finish Group was created to review the 
implementation of the Council’s Recycling Service that was introduced in 
May 2018. The Group has analysed reports on the service and has 
learned about the possible impact that the recently published Resources 
and Waste Strategy could have on the service in the future.

2.3 Accessible Information Policy Review Task and Finish Group
The Group originally drafted the Accessible Information Policy with input 
from departments of Copeland Borough Council, other Local Authorities, 
the Royal National Institute of Blind People (RNIB) and the Copeland 
Disability Forum (CDF). The Accessible Information Policy was accepted 
by Full Council on 19th February 2019. CDF expressed concern about 
some aspects of the policy in July 2019 and the Group reviewed the 
policy in October 2019.

2.3.1 The Task and Finish Group met with the CDF to address its concerns. Its 
concerns centred on the branding guidelines, specifically the size and 
font used by the Council, and the compatibility of accessibility software 
with the council website. The policy was amended to address their 
concerns where possible. The Copeland Disability Forum thanked the 
Council for taking time to address their concerns and were pleased with 
the outcome.

Page 56



2.4 Member Protocol Task and Finish Group
The Member Protocol was originally a part of a report to Full Council on 
25th June 2019 as part of revisions to the Planning Chapter of the 
Copeland Borough Council Constitution. At that meeting, it was 
recommended that the entirety of the revisions were passed to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be scrutinised.

2.4.1 At the meeting of the Task and Finish Group, the Solicitor produced a 
revised draft protocol for members to consider. The proposed protocol 
was extended to cover both regulatory committees, Licensing 
Committee as well as Planning Panel, as both committees deal with 
quasi-judicial matters.

2.4.2 The OSC approved the report at their meeting on 21st November 2019 
and have forwarded it to Council for their meeting on 16th December 
2019 with a recommendation to approve the protocol.

3.0 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

3.1 Legal Comments: No legal issues arise from this report.

3.2 Monitoring Officer Comments: There are no legal implications arising 
from this report.  Clarification point to note that constitutional changes 
regarding review and forward approval reside with the Standards and 
Ethics Committee.

3.3 Section 151 Officer Comments: There are no financial implications 
arising from this this recommendation.

3.4 EIA Comments: The actions of the Task and Finish Groups have had no 
negative impacts on local issues or for anyone who shares a protected 
characteristic. There are positive impacts for social and financial 
inclusion

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 Council 161219

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND OUTSIDE BODIES 
 
POLITICAL LEADS: Councillor David Moore 
LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Managing Director 
REPORT AUTHOR:        Stephanie Shaw, Democratic Services Manager 

 

Why has this report come to the Council? 

To consider amendments to the Committees and outside bodies following Councillor 
Ged McGrath’s move from the Conservative group to become an Independent.

 
Recommendation:  
  That Council approve 
a) The amendments of appointments to Committees, and
b) Outside Bodies - Cumbria Community Foundation Board and Cumbria Community   
     Foundation – West Cumbria Grants Panel.  

1 Committee Appointments 
 
Under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 the Council is required to appoint 
members to its committees in accordance with political proportionality rules. Appointments 
to committees and Outside Bodies for 2019/20 were approved at the Annual meeting on 21st 
May 2019, however due to Councillor Ged McGrath’s move from the Conservative group to 
become an Independent, political balance has been affected and a request has been 
received for it to be re-calculated.
There are now minor changes required to Committees and Outside Bodies. 

2         Committee changes

Standards and Ethics Committee  
Councillor Russell Studholme to replace Councillor Ged McGrath 

Audit Committee  
Councillor Jeffrey Hailes to replace Councillor Ged McGrath
Councillor Eileen Wier to be added
 
Planning Panel  
Councillor Steve Morgan to replace Councillor Ged McGrath 

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Gemma Dinsdale to be removed
One Independent Councillor to be added

3 Outside Bodies

Cumbria Community Foundation Board  
Deputy Mayor to replace Elected Mayor 

Cumbria Community Foundation – West Cumbria Grants Panel  
Councillor Fee Wilson to replace Councillor Ged McGrath 

 
4           Statutory Officer Comments  

4.1 Monitoring Officer Comments: Included in report 

4.2 S151 Officer Comments: None 

4.3 Legal Comments: No legal issues arise from this report.
 

Page 60



Council 021219 

UPDATE ON COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL’S DEVELOPMENT OF A BUSINESS CASE FOR 
WHITEHAVEN AGAINST THE FUTURE HIGH STREETS FUND

LEAD MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie
LEAD OFFICER: Julie Betteridge, Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities
REPORT AUTHOR: Sarah Mitchell, Economic Development Manager

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?

Copeland Borough Council has been invited by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) to develop a full Business Case for investment in Whitehaven 
through the Future High Streets Fund (FHSF).  

The benefit to Copeland residents from the development of an evidenced case for 
investment in Whitehaven is potential significant funding into the town, both through 
Government, public and private sector partners.  The regeneration of our town centres 
will bring improved economic prosperity with a knock-on increase in jobs, new 
businesses and visitors to the area.  

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO FULL COUNCIL?
(e.g. Key Decision, Policy recommendation for Full Council, at request of Council, etc.)

The report serves to confirm that following a successful Expression of Interest (EOI) as 
signed off by Full Council in January 2019, the Council has been awarded £150,000 from 
MHCLG to develop a full Business Case for investment in Whitehaven through FHSF.  In 
addition, this report sets out early plans for securing additional funding for both 
development and delivery stages

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Council is requested to:

a) Approve the application for, receipt and spend of an additional £350,000 to support 
the development of business plans for key individual projects as part of the FHSF bid, 
with the expectation that each individual business plan will be developed for no 
more than £100,000.  

b) In line with a successful application and grant conditions, to agree to receive and 
spend growth deal funding of at least £1m for land assembly and delivery from 
Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (CLEP).

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Following a successful Expression of Interest in the Future High Streets Fund 
(FHSF), the Council was informed in July that our application had been selected to 
go forward into the next phase of assessment and were invited to develop a full 
business case for capital investment by the FHSF in Whitehaven.  To assist us in 
the development of our business case MHCLG has provided a capacity and 
resource grant of £150,000.

1.2 Resource grants were capped by MHCLG at £150,000 for each applicant. The 
original request (within the EOI) to MHCLG to support this phase was £480,000

2 DISCUSSION

2.1 Following confirmation that Whitehaven has been selected for FHSF, the Council 
has been provided with a Delivery Manager by MHCLG to help guide and steer 
officers in developing the scope of the Business Case.  The development phase 
will focus the scheme to identify the interventions, buildings and schemes that 
will offer the best opportunity to deliver our vision, as set out in the EOI and meet 
the FHSF criteria to drive growth; improve experience and ensure future 
sustainability.

2.2 The Economic Development team have pulled together a cross departmental 
team within sub-groups to help focus on supporting deliverability of the schemes 
and are appointing external consultants to provide the technical expertise to 
ensure that our submission covers the 5 stages of the HMG business case model 
(strategic case, economic case, financial case, commercial case, management 
case) required by Government.  

2.3 The Council is now in receipt of £150,000 of external funding (MHCLG) towards 
FHSF, with potential to draw in other funds up to a maximum of £50,000, to bring 
total funding for the FHSF development of the business case to £200,000.  This 
will be spent and monitored in accordance with our financial regulations.

2.4 Key schemes within the bid also require business plans to underpin viability and 
reduce risk to potential funders. Additional external funding of up to £350,000 is 
being sought to enable robust delivery plans to be produced to support the bid. 

2.5 The Council has been invited by the Cumbria LEP to submit a full business case for 
at least £1m Growth Fund capital investment to support the FHSF.  Positively, the 
FHSF guidance is clear that co-funding resources, such as this, can be spent ahead 
of the final FHSF funding decision.  

2.6 Early discussions have been held within Whitehaven with stakeholders to support 
development of the schemes and where complementary projects are in place, a 
partner approach will be sought.  

Page 62



3 CONCLUSIONS

3.1 The Council has a governance route in place to develop the Business Case for the 
FHSF and is in the process of procuring technical support and recruiting additional 
capacity where required.  

3.2 Further funding can add value to the development of a Business Case and the 
Council will seek an additional £50,000 to support the FHSF submission, and up to 
an additional £350,000 for individual business plans to underpin the FHSF bid.

3.3 The Council will need to enter into partner agreements and procure the services 
required to develop the Business Case and supporting business plans to time and 
to budget. Contract and procurement regulations will be followed to minimise risk 
to the Council and deliver the required submission.

3.4 The FHSF development phase is progressing with a range of internal and external 
support and expertise.  The work to identify co-funding opportunities for the bid 
includes an expression of interest for Growth Fund resources held by the Cumbria 
LEP.   The Council has as a result been invited by the Cumbria LEP to submit a full 
business case for at least £1m capital investment in support of the FHSF delivery.  

4 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are:  
This report brings forward outlining on two individual fund bids to two separate 
organisations i.e. FHSF funds from MHCLG and Growth deal funding from CLEP.
My understanding is that these bids are mutually exclusive and there is no co-
dependency on receipt and consumption timing, value and purpose of funds.
In line with clear expectations as outlined in communication from MHCLG, the 
designated Responsible Officer (RO) for this project will confirm the detailed 
expenditure of the original business case funding to MHCLG, as and when 
required.  Governance of the project will require regular reporting to designated  
Project Board of the Risk Register and Issues Log – I assume there is full 
cognisance of the FHSF grant funding conditions which will be monitored through 
the log updates, and, that they do not contain any grant clawback provisions. 
At this stage no legal issues have arisen, and it is noted that match funding as 
outlined in the report must be secured, to avoid working ‘at risk’ by the ED team, 
before the current £150k bid funds are exceeded.  
Recommendation ‘b)’ to Council: approval for receipt and spend of £1m from the 
CLEP. Spend of the £1m will only take place within governance framework, MTFS 
policy and adherence to contract standing orders. 

4.2 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are:  The resource implications are included 
in this report. This report only commits the Council to submit a business case for 
Future High Streets Fund (FHSF).

Page 63



4.3 Legal Comments: The report deals with receipt of grant funding. The terms and 
conditions of the each grant should be checked prior to acceptance to ensure that 
no onerous conditions, particularly around claw back, are being imposed. In 
respect of the FHSF grant the offer letter at Appendix B refers to the grant being 
made under section 31 of the Local Government Finance Act 2003 and ‘subject to 
standard local authority grant conditions’. The standard conditions specific to the 
FHSF should be specifically checked. MHCLG accompanying guidance suggests 
minimal requirements in respect of grants and provided that the money is spent 
on the purposes intended, within the required timescales, and results in a ‘Green 
Book, MHCLG guidance and, where relevant, webTAG compliant full business 
case’ being presented then no issues should arise. (‘Green Book’ is the Treasury’s 
guidance on appraisal and evaluation; ‘webTAG’ is the Department of Transport’s 
web-based transport analysis guidance). In respect of CLEP grant conditions these 
should be checked. In respect of grant spend this should be done in accordance 
with contract standing orders to ensure compliance with procurement 
requirements.

4.4 EIA Comments:    Regeneration developments and applications for large grant 
funding will be advised by the Council’s Equality Scheme.  It is anticipated that 
Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken for each project.

4.5 Policy Framework:
The Council’s Corporate Strategy, Growth Strategy and underpinning suite of 
Plans, Policies and Strategies shape our work on the local economy and its impact 
to our residents and our responsibilities and role as a District Council.  The 
Corporate Plan states the Council’s ambition to deliver town centre regeneration 
which is reflected in the existing Economic Development Service Plan.

4.6 Consultation:   Regeneration programmes rely on communication and 
consultation plans.  Such a programme is in place for the Future High Street Fund 
which ensures stakeholders are and will be engaged in developing the bid and 
implementing the final scheme agreed with Government. 

5 RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 The funding from MHCLG covers the development phase, including resources to 
deliver the Business Case.  All external funding will be held with Economic 
Development cost codes and overseen by the Project Board and reported within 
existing council systems and performance frameworks.

  
 
6 HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS 

GOING TO BE MANAGED?

6.1 The development of the Business Case will use the corporate project 
management framework and will be project managed by the Economic 
Development Officer, supported by our Physical Regeneration Officer.  Both are 

Page 64



APM qualified, as are the Economic Development Manager and Director of 
Growth and Inclusive Communities and new administrative resource being 
recruited to support delivery will be skilled in a project office environment.

6.2 A Risk Register and Issues Log are held against the programme and are being 
regularly updated and reported through Council monitoring and reporting 
processes.

7 WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS REPORT?

7.1 A Business Case for submission to MHCLG to evidence the requirement of 
investment by Future High Streets Fund and partners in Whitehaven.
 

7.2 If additional funding is secured, robust business plans and detailed designs will be 
produced for key schemes to underpin the submission to MHCLG.

APPENDICES

A. FHSF Brochure/ Vision

B. MHCLG Grant Offer

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Whitehaven: a contemporary, capital, coastal town 

F
ut

ur
e 

H
ig

h 
St

re
et

 

Page 67



Whitehaven: the challenges

Sellafi eld accounts for 

58.7%
Copeland jobs
Future transformation
programme predicts

In 2017

47 
million
visited Cumbria

Only 8%
visited Copeland

14.7%
of commercial
buildings in 
town centre
vacant

reduction of 

3000

Of 409, just 139 (33.9%) 
businesses pay full business rates

Of 64 
units
on King Street
10 are vacant
2 are pawnbrokers
4 are charity shops

1 is a weekly 
payment store
1 is a casino

Over
45%
of Sellafi eld Ltd
wage bill is 
spent on those 
living outside of
Copeland

Only
12.6%
aged
25 - 34

28.7%
of residents
have no 
qualifi cations

103
empty homes
within town centre

roles across 
Cumbria
and Warrington

2010
Zone A rate 
£400 m/2
(King Street)

View from the harbour

Coastal Activities Centre

2017
Zone A rate 
£300 m/2
(King Street)

Buzz Station

Albion Square

Rosehill Theatre Herdus House

Beacon Portal

P
age 68



Whitehaven: vision and ambition for change

Our ambition for change: 
Whitehaven will become:

• Magnetic – businesses and people choosing to invest, visit, live 
and work;
• Diverse – with a creative and mixed economy
• Outward facing – a contemporary capital town, with a global 
perspective; 
• Better connected – physically and digitally enabled;
• Inclusive – an attractive and fair place that functions for all;
• Modern – cultivating a different future for the town. 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government 
2 Marsham Street 
SW1P 4DF 

  Date: 01 October 2019 

 

Dear Local Authority, 

Future High Streets Fund 

Capacity and Resource Grant Determination letter 

Following the success of your authority at the Expression of Interest stage of the Future High 

Streets Fund (FHSF), I am pleased to confirm that the Government has transferred to your 

authority a capacity and resource (RDEL) grant  .   

We are awarding this Grant under a Section 31 non-ring-fenced transfer (Local Government 

Finance Act 2003). Our expectation is that the Council will use the funds to assist with the 

costs of developing a full business case for the scheme or schemes outlined in your 

Expression of Interest. These should be submitted to the FHSF in accordance with the terms 

of the business case development guidelines issued or to be issued by the FHSF. All grants 

paid under section 31 powers will be subject to standard local authority grant conditions.   

The Future High Streets Fund’s Senior Responsible Officer (SRO), Rachel Fisher, will require 

your responsible officer to confirm that the funding has been properly expended when your 

business case is submitted. 

You should note that your authority will be responsible for any further or additional costs 

that may be incurred by it in the preparation of the full business case. Should you require 

additional funding, MHCLG officials will be in touch with further details on how to apply for 

any additional capacity and resource funding. Please note that the maximum total award for 

any one high street remains £150,000 with similar conditions applying to any additional 

funding. Beyond this, there will be no further revenue funding available from the Fund. 

Yours sincerely, 

Laura Hurley 

Head of the Future High Streets Fund 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Full Council 161219

2020-2024 CORPORATE STRATEGY 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Elected Mayor, Mike Starkie

LEAD OFFICER: Corporate Leadership Team

REPORT AUTHOR:            Performance and Risk Management Officer, Gillian Butterworth 

WHY HAS THE REPORT COME TO THE COUNCIL? 
This report forms part of the Budget & Policy Framework within an Elected Mayor authority.  
Council is receiving the draft 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy for consideration and approval.

Recommendation:

Council is recommended to consider and approve the draft 2020-2024 Corporate 
Strategy (attached at appendix A).
 

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy continues and builds upon the 2016-2020 
Corporate Strategy.  As the Elected Mayor enters a second term, this strategy 
incorporates the Mayors ambitions for the borough based on his manifesto 
pledges and the key priorities for the Council over the next four years.

2. THE CORPORATE STRATEGY

2.1 The 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy sets out the Council’s Mission, Vision and 
Ambitions for the next four years.

 Our Mission is to make Copeland a better place to live, work and visit.

 Our Vision is to for the Council is to be a commercially focused organisation with 
a national reputation for high quality services

 Our Ambitions are:

 To be a place for growth

 To be commercial council

 To ensure we have healthy and inclusive communities

 To Play to our Strengths 

Page 73

Agenda Item 12



2.2 The Corporate Strategy celebrates the many assets that we have here already in 
Copeland and the key successes that we, as a Council, have achieved over the last 
four years under the previous Corporate Strategy.  
It is an aspirational strategy which shows our continued commitment to working 
with partners to seek and attract new funding, investment and skills to Copeland to 
deliver our growth agenda and provide a lasting legacy of sustained work and 
income opportunity.

2.3 Recognising there is much to celebrate, the Corporate Strategy is also open about 
the challenges that we face across the borough in relation to our economy, 
demography and barriers to inclusion.  It articulates how, in response to these 
external challenges, the Council will work in partnerships to ensure that the most 
vulnerable members of our communities are supported and that the activity of the 
Council has maximum impact on the lives of all residents.  

2.4 Acknowledging of the effects of government funding cuts on local authorities, the 
Corporate Strategy reiterates that our priority is to continue to provide services to 
the highest possible quality and accessibility, for the lowest possible cost for our 
residents. To achieve these ends the Council will become more self-sustaining 
through increased commercial focus and activity. It will also drive improvement and 
innovation in its own operations. 

2.6 The Corporate Strategy focuses on the achievement of four strategic ambitions and 
outcomes; 

o Ambition 1 – To be a place for growth
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
For the places where we live and work to reflect the aspirations and 
prosperity of the area.

o Ambition 2 – To be a commercial council 
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
For Copeland to be a resilient, engaged, innovative and commercially 
enterprising Council delivering high quality, sustainable services for our 
residents

o Ambition 3 – To ensure we have healthy and inclusive communities 
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
Through partnership working and delivery, we will ensure that the most 
vulnerable members of our community are supported and all residents have 
better life chances.

o Ambition 4 - To Play to our Strengths
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
To maximise opportunities for growth in Copeland by attracting business and
Investment and retaining our talented young people, and promote and 
protect our environment.

Page 74



2.7. The Corporate Strategy will be delivered through a high level Corporate Delivery 
Plan.  Successful delivery of the Strategic Outcomes will be monitored and evaluated 
via a series of Key Deliverables and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) which will be 
used to demonstrate whether the Council is on track to achieve its Vision and 
Ambitions.

2.8. The suite of Key Deliverables and KPIs will be reviewed, as a whole, on an annual basis to 
ensure their continued relevance and respond to any changes in legislation or priorities.  

2.9 Proposed Key Deliverables and KPIs for 2020-2021 will presented to the Executive 
for approval in March 2020. Thereafter they will be monitored and evaluated by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Executive on a quarterly basis. 
This process will be repeated each year for the four years of the strategy.

2.10 Service Plans and individual performance objectives will be aligned to the strategic 
ambitions and outcomes of the Corporate Strategy through the Performance 
Management and Improvement Framework.

2.11 Risks to delivery of the Councils strategic and operational objectives will be 
monitored through the Risk Management Framework.

4. CONCLUSIONS

4.1 The Corporate Strategy is an integral part of the Council’s Performance and 
Improvement Management Framework.  The Council looks to the Corporate Strategy 
to guide its budget process.
The draft 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy presented to the Council for approval and 
endorsement. (Appendix A)

4.2 The draft 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy has under gone an Equalities Impact 
Assessment and Social Inclusion Impact Assessment, these are attached as 
appendices to the report. (Appendix B and C)

5. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

5.1 Monitoring Officer and Legal Comments:  No specific legal issues arise from the 
report.  Any legal issues arising from specific projects identified in the report will be 
dealt with as each project develops.

5.2 S151 Officer Comments:  The Medium Term Financial Plan underpins the Corporate 
Strategy and will be considered by Council in February for the period 2020-2024.

5.3 EIA Comments:  In undertaking consultation and developing and delivering against 
the Corporate Strategy and priorities, the Council’s aim will at all times be to secure 
compliance with its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular the 

Page 75



public sector equality duty under that Act.  The outcome of any decisions in 
designing and implementing the key deliverables will be subject to further equality 
impact assessment.

5.4 Policy Framework Comments:  The Council’s Constitution sets down the Budget and 
Policy Framework Procedure Rules to be followed.

5.5 Other Consultees: 
Feedback from residents, partner organisations and other stakeholders has 
helped to shape and inform the strategy content The Corporate Leadership Team 
were consulted throughout the drafting of the 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy.  
A presentation on the draft strategy was made to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 21st November 2019.  OSC resolved that a few small details to be 
changed in the presentation, prior to it going to back to Executive on 9th December 
and for approval at Full Council on 16th December 2019. 

6.  APPENDICIES
Appendix A. - Draft 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy
Appendix B - Social inclusion checklist
Appendix C- EIA Assessment

Page 76



1

Copeland2024

DRAFT-Corporate Strategy 2020-2024

Making Copeland a better place to 
live, work and visit

Page 77



2

Full Pic

Page 78



3

Message from the Mayor
During my second term as Elected Mayor, I want to continue to deliver on the political commitments 
that I have personally made and ensure that the expectations, ambitions and needs of our 
community are prioritised and met.

As a local authority, Copeland Borough Council is charged by central government with the delivery of 
a number of statutory services.  Over the next four years our priority is to continue to provide 
services to all residents to the highest possible quality and accessibility, for the lowest possible cost.

Achieving this will not be easy and we acknowledge the challenges we face as budget pressures 
become ever more challenging owing to the long term impact of austerity measures felt by local 
authorities.

However, we are determined to continue to set the bar high as we strive to continue to make 
Copeland a better place to live, work and visit.  

In addition to the delivery of frontline services, when developing the Corporate Strategy we as a 
council listened carefully to what you said you would like to see improved across Copeland. 

Through the Corporate Strategy we want to:

 Secure service delivery and support the ambitions of our residents through commercial 
activity of the council and working with partners.

 Ensure the places where we live and work reflect the aspirations and prosperity of the area.

 Support the most vulnerable in our communities and promote the health, inclusivity, and 
the wellbeing of all our residents.

 Maximise opportunities for growth across Copeland by attracting business and investment.

As your Elected Mayor, I want to emphasise that Copeland is very much open for business and I 
commend this Corporate Strategy to you which is the blueprint for a truly exciting and productive 
journey that will be instrumental in helping create the Copeland we all want to see.

Mike Starkie
Elected Mayor of Copeland.

INSERT new photo of Mayor with Executive

Page 79



4

Contents (full Pic Background)

1. Message from Mayor 

2. About Copeland 

3. Challenges for Copeland 

4. Our Vision 

5. Our Ambitions

6. Monitoring and Evaluation

7. Corporate Strategy – plan on a page 

8. Ambition 1 – A Place for Growth 

9. Ambition 2 – A Commercial Council 

10. Ambition 3 - Healthy and Inclusive Communities 

11. Ambition 4 - Playing to our Strengths 

Page 80



5

About Copeland 
The Borough of Copeland is located in West Cumbria and covers 285 square miles.  Two thirds of the 
borough are located within the Lake District National Park, with the western-most edge enjoying 90 
km of coastline. 

With an overall population of 68,424, most of the borough is rural and the majority of the 
population resides within the four market towns of Whitehaven, Cleator Moor, Egremont and 
Millom.   When compared to England & Wales, Copeland has lower proportions of residents in the 
three youngest age groups (0-44 years) and higher in the four oldest age groups (aged 45+).

The nuclear sector and its supply chain is the major employer within the area, currently employing 
over 55% of all employees in Copeland

The borough is already prosperous and has been identified as one of the most affordable places to 
live in the UK, with low house prices (median £125,000K) and the third highest median salary in the 
country (£891.20 gross pay per week full-time). 

Home to a stunning natural environment of mountains, lakes and coastal landscapes, Copeland also 
has a rich heritage, history and sense of community.  A survey in 2014 listed two towns within the 
Borough in the top 10 places to raise a family and in 2018 Copeland was named the second happiest 
place to live in Britain in an Office for National Statistics Well-Being Survey.

Copeland as a great place to live, work, visit– (to be presented as an infographic)

Live
 £125,000 Median House 

Price
 71% home ownership
 £44,000 Median salary 
 1,200 new houses in the 

pipeline.
 98% Planning Applications 

approved
 100% Major planning 

applications determined 
in timeframe

Work
 3rd highest median salary 

in the UK 
 74.3% of 16-64 year olds 

in employment
 81% employees in full-

time work
 2400 Apprenticeships 

started since 2016
 55% of all employees 

employed in Nuclear 
Sector

 2225 active businesses in 
Copeland

 114 New Businesses 
registered in 2018/19

 £183 million generated 
through visitor economy 
in 2018

Visit
 3.62 Million Visitors in 

2018
 20% increase in Tourism 

over last 5 years
 Home to two UNESCO 

world heritage sites
 6/10 best rated beaches 

in Cumbria
 England’s highest 

mountain -Scafell Pike
 England’s Deepest Lake – 

Wastwater
 94% of all visitors felt 

better mentally whilst 
visiting the Lake District

Page 81



6

Challenges for Copeland
Recognising there is much to celebrate across our communities, there is no doubt that there exists in 
Copeland a dichotomy of wealth. 
There are those that most definitely have and those that most definitely do not have.

Nationally statistically recognised high salaries enjoyed by some mask an underlying issue of poorer 
standards of health and education, lower household incomes, and higher levels of benefits 
dependency concentrated in pockets of deprivation.

As a largely rural borough, there are barriers to inclusion in places through limited access to services, 
transport and broadband infrastructure. (60.5% living in rural locations).

With the lowest projected growth of working age population in the country, Copeland has lower 
proportions of residents in the three youngest age groups and higher in the four oldest age groups.

There are projected impacts to Copeland’s economy as Sellafield transforms its organisation and 
moves away from reprocessing.

Solutions to these challenges are at best complex, however there is a real desire for positive and 
long lasting action through collaborative vision and planning.

The priority for the Council will always be to provide services of the highest possible quality for the 
lowest possible cost to all residents. Beyond this, we intend to continue working with partners to 
seek and attract new funding, investment and skills to deliver a growth agenda and provide a lasting 
legacy of sustained work and income opportunity.

Taking the initiative in this way will bring about a narrowing of the gaps that currently exist and 
moreover will help bring equal opportunity and transformation so that all residents can enjoy the 
beautiful area that is our Copeland.

Our Mission is to continue to make Copeland a better place to live, work and visit.

Page 82



7

Our Vision 
The impact of central government funding reductions has been felt across the country.  Funding to 
local authorities has fallen by an average of 40% since 2010. Further cuts are expected and by 2021 
local authorities are due to be entirely reliant upon local sources of income to fund frontline services 
and local aspirations.

Copeland Borough Council acknowledges the challenge that it faces, but also views the current 
funding picture as an opportunity to effect fundamental changes to the way we do business. 

To meet the funding gap, over the next four years, the Council must become a more commercially-
focused business in order to continue to provide frontline services.  To do this we will innovate and 
improve our operations where we can, draw on good practice from public and private sectors and 
continue to implement our workforce strategy which drives development of our people, passion, 
performance, productivity and professionalism.

We will also explore the opportunity to work in cooperation with our neighbouring authority to 
ensure greater efficiencies to the benefit of our residents.  

Our vision for Copeland Borough Council is to be a commercially-focused organisation with a 
national reputation for high quality services.

Page 83



8

Our Ambitions
When delivering our Corporate Strategy we want to have the maximum impact where possible on all 
aspects of life across the borough.  Where needed, we will continue to use our influence, work in 
partnerships and act as an enabler to achieve this. 

The four ambitions and outcomes of this Corporate Strategy are:

Ambition 1 – To be a place for growth

The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:

For the places where we live and work to reflect 
the aspirations and prosperity of the area

Ambition 2 – To be a commercial council 

The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:

For Copeland to be a resilient, engaged, 
innovative and commercially enterprising 
Council delivering high quality, sustainable 
services for our residents

Ambition 3 – To ensure we have healthy and 
inclusive communities 

The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:

Through partnership working and delivery, we 
will ensure that the most vulnerable members 
of our community are supported and all 
residents have better life chances.

Ambition 4 - To Play to our Strengths

The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:

To maximise opportunities for growth in 
Copeland by attracting business and
investment and retaining our talented young 
people. To promote and protect our 
environment

Page 84



9

Monitoring and Evaluation of the Corporate Strategy
This Corporate Strategy builds upon the many successes and achievements of the last four years and 
sets out our vision and ambitions for the next four years.  

We will use a Corporate Delivery Plan to detail how we intend to achieve the ambitions laid out in 
this strategy.

We will monitor and evaluate the achievement of our ambitions through quarterly updates on the 
Corporate Plan Key Deliverables, relevant partnerships, programmes and strategies and a suite of 
Key Performance Indicators and data trends.

The Corporate Plan will outline key deliverables that we will meet and the strategies, programmes 
and partnerships we will engage in to successfully achieve our ambitions. 

The Corporate Plan, Service Plans and Key Performance Indicators will be reviewed annually to 
ensure they reflect any changes to legislation or priorities of the Council. 

Page 85



10

        

Our Vi Our Vision for the council: Copeland Borough Council is a commercially focused organisation with a national 
sion for the council: Copeland Borough Council is a commercially focused organisation with a national reputation 

for high quality services

Our Mission for Copeland:  To make Copeland a better place to live, work and visit

Our Vision for the Council: Copeland Borough Council is a commercially focused organisation with a national 
reputation for high quality services

Our Values: 1. Work with Partners 2. Be cost effective 3.Treat everyone fairly 

Strategic Outcome

For the places where we 
live and work to reflect the 
aspirations and prosperity 

of the area

Ambition 1
A Place for Growth

Ambition 2
A Commercial Council

Ambition 3
Healthy and Inclusive 

communities

Ambition 4
Playing to our Strengths

Corporate Strategy 2020-2024

Strategic Outcome

Through partnership 
working and delivery, we 
will ensure that the most 

vulnerable members of our 
community are supported 

and all residents have 
better life chances.

Strategic Outcome 

To maximise opportunities 
for growth in Copeland by 

attracting business and 
investment and retaining 

our talented young people 
and promote and protect 

our environment.

Strategic Outcome

For Copeland to be a 
resilient, engaged, 
innovative and 
commercially enterprising 
Council delivering high 
quality, sustainable services 
for our residents.

Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan 

The Corporate Strategy 2020-2024 – Plan on a page

Our Organisation:  5 Development Principles - People, Passion, Professionalism, Productivity, Performance

P
age 86



11

Ambition 1 – A Place for Growth
Making the most of what we already have here in Copeland through our stunning natural 
environment, our rich heritage and our unique economy.
Being prepared for the future through innovative, cohesive and comprehensive planning, decision 
making and digital connectivity.
Taking opportunities to diversify, strengthen and modernise our economy for the future through an 
agreed economic vision for Copeland 

Achievements we made under the 2016-20 Corporate Strategy

 Revitalisation of our business premises through awarding building improvements grants to over 
100 businesses across the borough. 

 Properties were regenerated and brought back into use through the Townscape Heritage 
Initiative in Whitehaven Market Place

 By working with owners, we brought over 120 long-term empty homes back into use across 
Copeland.

 Worked closely with local communities to define spatial frameworks to guide future growth 
across our towns.

 Adopted Conservation Area Design Guide

 Secured funding from private and public bodies to fund economic regeneration and 
development programmes and projects in Copeland.

 Supported partners on the development of a number of ambitious regeneration proposals and 
improvement schemes across the borough.

 Hosted two successful ‘Open for Business’ conferences, held proactive dialogue with the 
development sector and continued to grow our reputation as a place to do business. 

 Supported small businesses by continuing to offer targeted discretionary business rates relief.

 Held Copeland’s first Tourism summit and opened a Tourist Information Point in the Beacon in 
partnership with UCLan. Hidden Coast Tourism Officer appointed.

 Launched our new Kerbside Recycling Scheme, resulting in recycling figures more than doubling.

 Adopted Public Space Protection orders to deter nuisance behaviour, fly-tipping, dog fouling and 
littering.

Page 87



12

What we are going to do moving forward – Key Deliverables

 Develop an Economic Vision for Copeland to diversify, strengthen and modernise our economy 
and place

 Develop a Nuclear Prospectus for West Cumbria recognising the significant challenges and 
opportunities in the sector  

 Support and lobby for Digital Connectivity required to support our residents, businesses and 
economic ambitions

 Through partnership working, implement Vision and Spatial Plans for Whitehaven, Cleator 
Moor, Egremont and Millom, maximise enhanced funding streams and economic opportunities.

 Encourage and ensure our empty homes and commercial properties are brought back into use 
in regeneration areas and town plans

 Attract funding to develop tourism and experience offer for Copeland and beyond

 Adoption of our Local Plan to deliver and shape growth aspirations

 Develop the concept of all our towns and villages as heathy places.

 Attract public and private funding and investment to Copeland 

What this will look like - Strategic Outcome 

For the places where we live and work to reflect the aspirations and prosperity of the area

Page 88



13

Ambition 2 – A Commercial Council
Local Councils can no longer rely solely on government funding, therefore the council is required to 
adopt a more commercial approach to the running and delivery of our services.  Using our 
Commercial Strategy 2019-23 we will explore options to become financially self-sustaining without 
compromise to frontline services. We will draw on best practice from progressive and successful 
commercial activities and approaches to deliver Council ambitions and meet service expectations 
and demand.

Achievements we made under the 2016-20 Corporate Strategy

 Maintained and increased customer base for current commercial services

 Business cases developed for our current commercially tradable services

 Launched our new commercially successful Pest Control Service

 Delivery of the Bereavement Services Investment Plan underway

 Adoption of Procurement and Contract Management Strategy

 2019-2023 Commercial Strategy and new governance framework

 Asset Management and Investment Strategy approved. 

What we are going to do moving forward – Key Deliverables

 By 2023, 15% (£1.35m) of the Council’s revenue budget will be generated through Commercial 
Activity.

 Engage in income generation, borrowing and long term investment in accordance with our 
Commercial Strategy.

 Achieve financial sustainability through portfolio investment, strategic use of council owned and 
acquired assets and attracting inward investment. 

 Create new delivery vehicles as appropriate to achieve our corporate wide economic and 
commercial objectives. 

 Maintain focus on customer experience and quality of services through digital innovation.

 Train and develop our existing and new workforce in line with our commercial ambitions and 
where appropriate create additional capacity and roles to focus on delivery and financial return.

What will this look like? Strategic Outcome

For Copeland to be a resilient, engaged, innovative and commercially enterprising council delivering 
high quality, sustainable services for the residents of Copeland.

Page 89



14

Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities 
Ensuring that all residents of Copeland have equal access to opportunities, services and support that 
they require to participate fully in society and thrive throughout their lives. 

Achievements we made under the 2016-20 Corporate Strategy

 Enabled Copeland residents to access skills, training and employment, through the Copeland 
Work and Skills Partnership, over 140 individuals have received support through a variety of 
employment pathways.

 Addressed health inequalities and high priority health issues for our residents through the 
Copeland Health and Wellbeing Forum.

 Secured support and grant funding to delivery partners, voluntary sector and grass roots 
organisations through our Social Inclusion Programme to reduce social isolation and promote 
wellbeing and engagement.

 Enabled our residents to remain in their own homes through Disabled Facilities Grants 
modifications.

 Provided vital support to people affected by domestic abuse and worked with other statutory 
agencies to safeguard vulnerable adults and children from harm.

 Made progress in tackling anti-social behaviour and low-level crime through cross sector working 
with our partners in the Copeland Hub 

 Hosted the Copeland Community Fund which supports community groups to deliver sustainable 
projects across the borough.

 Launched our Children’s Charter

What we are going to do moving forward – Key Deliverables

 Through our work with partners, support the development of first class education and health 
services in Copeland, including local apprentice schemes.

 Recognise and respond to health issues specific to our residents, including mental health, ageing 
population, isolation, and working in partnership to maintain support, advice and help.

 Support residents to develop and maintain active lifestyles as a key building block for health and 
well-being, understanding the crucial role this plays both in improving and preventing poor 
health in the future.

 Understand and address the loss of opportunity, ambition and inclusion for those impacted by 
food and fuel poverty, mental health, limited social and family support, and drug and alcohol 
abuse. Work in partnership to change outcomes and drive social mobility, including work and 
skills programmes.

Page 90



15

 Build on success and strong leadership in the reduction in homelessness and empty homes 
through established partnership working.

 Strengthen our shared equalities agenda, particularly regarding domestic abuse, disability, 
modern slavery, race and gender inequalities, financial and rural exclusion. 

 Facilitate efficient access to help, support and advice for our residents from all partners through 
public service sector hub working.

What will this look like? – Strategic Outcome Through partnership working and delivery, we will 
ensure that the most vulnerable members of our community will be supported and all residents 
have better life chances.

 

Page 91



16

Ambition 4 – Playing to our strengths
Using our influence and partnerships, sometimes in an enabling role, we will maximise the unique 
and real opportunities for growth, jobs, new sector developments and manufacturing across West 
Cumbria.  Playing to our strengths and leading by example, we will be a future focused borough that 
is vibrant and progressive.

Achievements we made under the 2016-20 Corporate Strategy

 Produced a balanced budget and strengthened our financial management.

 Adopted the Aim High Process to ensure the Council has the necessary performance, skills and 
career development for our workforce to achieve the Council’s business strategy.

 Completed a council-wide pay and grading review to keep the Council a competitive employer

 Made a commitment to be a living wage employer, also gaining accreditation from the Living 
Wage Foundation

 Undertook a Corporate Peer Review Challenge with the Local Government Association
 

 Spoke at a number of key conferences nationally on how to deal with a hostile cyber-attack

 Continued to work with partners in a diverse range of sectors, including Sellafield Ltd, United 
Utilities, UCLan, and West Coast Mining, to drive economic, environmental and social benefits 
for the borough.

 The Mayor continued to chair the Future Opportunities Group, which brings together leaders 
from key industries and sectors.

 Adoption of Climate Position Statement

 Agreed revised Nuclear Position Statements

 Signed Memorandum of Understanding with Allerdale Borough Council

What we are going to do moving forward – Key Deliverables 

 Work in collaboration and through strong leadership to maintain and operate lean, efficient 
public services across West Cumbria utilising the skills, capability and professionalism of our 
workforce.

 Maximise the unique and real opportunities for growth, jobs and new sector development 
across West Cumbria 

Page 92



17

 Strengthen then utilise the capabilities and skills of our young people using their passion to 
make their lives and this place all it can be.

 Promote West Cumbria as the Centre of Nuclear Excellence, seeking national recognition and 
investment.  Through our Nuclear Prospectus, ensure that our unique asset base, including skills, 
is leveraged to generate wealth and prosperity in West Cumbria and the UK.

 Work with our MP to ensure Copeland and our ambitions are mainstreamed into Government 
thinking and growth planning.

 To lead by example in developing a Climate Position Statement to create awareness, making 
meaningful step changes in our operations to reduce both the carbon footprint of the council 
but also challenge our residents and businesses in the borough to do likewise.  Also recognising 
the economic opportunities in green technologies and clean growth understanding our uniquely 
placed opportunity to support the UK step change.

What this will look like – Strategic Outcome - To maximise opportunities for growth in Copeland by 
attracting business and investment and retaining our talented young people.  To promote and 
protect our environment.

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Social Inclusion Checklist V1 Nov 2019

Social Inclusion Checklist Corporate Strategy 2020 - 2024

This 
number 
links to 
the 
Guidance 
table

Inclusion Factor Have you 
considered 
this? Tick 
or N/A 

Comments as to action taken or to be built in at a later 
stage.
If N/A state why it is not relevant.

SI 2.1 Has an Equality Impact Assessment been completed?  Completed 2/12/19

SI 2.2 Have customers/partners/stakeholders from a range of 
backgrounds been involved in shaping this policy/strategy or 
service?

 Feedback from residents, partner organisations and other 
stakeholders has helped to shape and inform the strategy 
content

SI 2.3 Have you removed or minimised barriers, which prevent access 
to services and activities or provided alternatives?

 Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Strategic Outcome Through partnership working and 
delivery, we will ensure that the most vulnerable members of 
our community will be supported and all residents have 
better life chances.

SI 2.4 Is all publicly available information about this in line with the 
CBC Accessible Information Policy? 

 The strategy will be available in accessible formats 

SI 2.5 Are services to be offered in an appropriate, accessible 
environment for people with a range of access needs (face to 
face/digital etc.?)

 Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Ensuring that all residents of Copeland have equal access to 
opportunities, services and support that they require to 
participate fully in society and thrive throughout their lives.

SI 2.6 Are there special considerations for those on low incomes or 
otherwise excluded to access this service or policy area

 Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Key deliverable: Understand and address the loss of 
opportunity, ambition and inclusion for those impacted by 
food and fuel poverty, mental health, limited social and 
family support, and drug and alcohol abuse. Work in 

P
age 95



Social Inclusion Checklist V1 Nov 2019

partnership to change outcomes and drive social mobility, 
including work and skills programmes.

SI 2.7 Does it help retain or create jobs and/or help people back into 
work?

 Ambition 4 – Playing to our strengths
We will maximise the unique and real opportunities for 
growth, jobs, new sector developments and manufacturing 
across West Cumbria.

SI 2.8 Does it provide skills and education opportunities?  Ambition 4 – Playing to our strengths:
Strengthen then utilise the capabilities and skills of our young 
people using their passion to make their lives and this place 
all it can be.

SI 2.9 Does it help provide everyone with a decent home?  Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Build on success and strong leadership in the reduction in 
homelessness and empty homes through established 
partnership working.

SI 2.10 Does it Improve the health and sense of well-being of people?  Ambition 1 – A place for growth:
Develop the concept of all our towns and villages as heathy 
places.
Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Support residents to develop and maintain active lifestyles as 
a key building block for health and well-being, understanding 
the crucial role this plays both in improving and preventing 
poor health in the future.

SI 2.11 Does it support the maintenance and enhancement of the local 
environment that will have a positive impact on health and 
well-being?

 Ambition 1 – A place for growth:
Develop the concept of all our towns and villages as heathy 
places.
Ambition 4 – Playing to our strengths:
To promote and protect our environment

SI 2.12 Does it contribute to tackling crime and antisocial behaviour 
and increase community safety.

 Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:

P
age 96



Social Inclusion Checklist V1 Nov 2019

Strengthen our shared equalities agenda, particularly 
regarding domestic abuse, disability, modern slavery, race 
and gender inequalities, financial and rural exclusion. 

SI 2.13 Does it help advocate for the provision of affordable and 
appropriate public transport

 Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities: Ensuring 
that all residents of Copeland have equal access to 
opportunities, services and support that they require to 
participate fully in society and thrive throughout their lives

SI 2.14 Does it help tackle exclusion for those living in isolated rural 
areas?

 Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Ensuring that all residents of Copeland have equal access to 
opportunities, services and support that they require to 
participate fully in society and thrive throughout their lives

SI 2.15 Does it encourage democratic engagement?  Ambition 3 – Healthy and Inclusive Communities:
Through partnership working and delivery, we will ensure 
that the most vulnerable members of our community will 
supported and all residents have better life chances.

SI 2.16 Does it ensure the widest possible access to leisure, cultural 
and local heritage services?

 Ambition 1 – A place for growth:
Attract funding to develop tourism and experience offer for 
Copeland and beyond

SI 2.17 Does it support initiatives to improve access to ICT and 
promote digital inclusion?

 Ambition 1 – A place for growth:
Support and lobby for Digital Connectivity required to 
support our residents, businesses and economic ambitions

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EIA Template V2.2_ Nov 2019 Page 1 of 6

The long-term mission of Copeland Borough Council is to ‘make Copeland a better place to live, work and visit’.  One of the core values that underpin this 
mission is a commitment to ‘treat everyone equally, fairly and with respect’.

Note: This EIA template will be used (when necessary) to assess Council strategies, policies, frameworks, programmes, projects, practices, functions and 
services, all of which will be referred to as ‘policy/practice’ hereinafter.

EIA Title: Corporate Strategy 2020 - 2024

 The Equality Act (2010) covers the following nine protected characteristics:

 Age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

 The Equality Act - Public Sector Equality Duty (2010).  Copeland Borough Council is a public service provider and an employer.  As such, in the 
exercising of its functions, it should seek to: 

a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.

b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 

  c.    Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

Copeland Borough Council

Equality Impact Assessment

P
age 99



EIA Template V2.2_ Nov 2019 Page 2 of 6

 Step 1 - Describe the proposed policy/practice. (please use as much space as is needed to answer in full)

 Summarise the policy/practice that is being assessed.
CBC Corporate Strategy 2020 – 2024, detailing corporate ambitions and stratgeic outcomes

 What are the required outcomes of this policy/practice?

Ambition 1 – To be a place for growth
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
For the places where we live and work to reflect the aspirations and prosperity of the area

Ambition 2 – To be a commercial council 
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
For Copeland to be a resilient, engaged, innovative and commercially enterprising Council delivering high quality, sustainable services for our 
residents

Ambition 3 – To ensure we have healthy and inclusive communities 
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
Through partnership working and delivery, we will ensure that the most vulnerable members of our community are supported and all residents 
have better life chances.

Ambition 4 - To Play to our Strengths
The strategic outcome of this ambition will be:
To maximise opportunities for growth in Copeland by attracting business and
Investment and retaining our talented young people. To promote and protect our environment

 How do these outcomes align with the Council’s ambitions (Corporate Strategy and delivery plan)? 

See above

 Who will be affected by this policy/practice?

P
age 100



EIA Template V2.2_ Nov 2019 Page 3 of 6

All who live and/or work in Copeland, businesses operating or delivering services in the borough, partner organisations, visitors, local authorities 
in Cumbria and beyond.

 Who are the key stakeholders in the delivery or endorsement of this policy/practice? (e.g. partners, community groups)
All who live and/or work in Copeland, businesses operating or delivering services in the borough, partner organisations, visitors, neighbouring 
local authorities in Cumbria

 If this EIA is assessing the impact of a proposed change to a policy or practice, please provide details of the proposed changes.
N/A – this strategy leads on from the 2019 – 2020 Corporate Strategy

 Are there any wider impacts associated with the policy/practice that should be considered? E.g. Impact on another service area or assistance 
required to implement the policy/practice.

The Corporate Strategy impacts on all aspects of the Council’s services and activities

 What factors/risks could affect the intended outcomes of the policy/practice?

Changes in legislation imposed by national government
Funding issues
Lack of input/engagement by elected members or Council officers to support delivery 

 What research or consultation has been undertaken?
(Please include responses from surveys, focus groups, feedback forms, research and statistics etc.)

Feedback from residents, partner organisations and other stakeholders has helped to shape and inform the strategy.

Research and statistical information regarding population, health, demographics, environment, incomes, commerce, housing, employment 
opportunities and commercial opportunities.

P
age 101



EIA Template V2.2_ Nov 2019 Page 4 of 6

Step 2 - Equality Action Plan

Will the proposed policy/practice have 
any negative impacts on members of 
the protected characteristics? 

Mitigating Actions Monitoring

Protected Characteristics Y/N How do you think these people 
may be negatively impacted by 
the policy/practice?

Please list the evidence, research 
or consultation that supports 
your decisions or actions?

What actions you have 
taken/recommended to 
mitigate negative impact? 

Officer and 
timeframe

Age N
Disability N
Gender Reassignment N
Marriage and Civil Partnership  N
Pregnancy and maternity N
Race N
Religion or belief N
Sex N
Sexual Orientation N

Please could you also consider whether this policy/practice is likely to have a negative impact on the following local issues:

Locally significant issue Y/N How do you think these people 
may be negatively impacted by 
the policy/practice?

Please list the evidence, research 
or consultation that supports 
your decisions or actions?

What actions you have 
taken/recommended to 
mitigate negative impact? 

Officer and 
timeframe

Rurality – isolation and/or 
access to services 

N

Social, Financial or Digital 
Inclusion

N

Neighbourhood issues N

P
age 102



EIA Template V2.2_ Nov 2019 Page 5 of 6

Requirements of the CBC 
Children’s Charter

N

Step 3 – identify and list any positive impacts that this policy/practice may have on people who share a protected characteristic.

Please use this table to list any positive impacts that this policy/practice will have on people who share a protected characteristic.
E.g.  how this policy/practice will advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic.

Protected group Details of positive impacts

Age (young and old) Under Ambition 3 – Healthy & Inclusive Communities, the Strategy aims to ensure that all residents of 
Copeland have equal access to opportunities, services and support that they require to participate fully 
in society and thrive throughout their lives. 

Black and Minority Ethnic  As above
Disabled As above
Faith/Belief  As above
Sexual Orientation As above
Gender As above
Gender Reassignment As above
Pregnancy and maternity As above
Marriage and Civil Partnership  As above
Rurality Impact As above
Social Inclusion impact As above
Neighbourhood issues As above

 Step 4 - Monitoring

Date of EIA: 2nd December 2019
EIA Author (s):
Senior Responsible Officer:
Directorate/Service Area: Office of the Elected Mayor
Please give details of how this EIA will be 
monitored:

The EIA will be monitored annually in line with the Corporate Strategy

P
age 103



EIA Template V2.2_ Nov 2019 Page 6 of 6

Please give details of when this EIA will be 
reviewed:

The EIA will be reviewed annually in line with the Corporate Strategy

Date EIA forwarded to Policy Officer:

P
age 104



Council 161219

PLANNING PANEL AND LICENSING COMMITTEE – GENERAL PROTOCOL
PLANNING PANEL – SITE VISITS PROTOCOL

Executive Member: Councillor David Moore (Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 
Corporate Services including Democratic Services).

Lead Officer: Pat Graham, Chief Executive.

Report author: Clinton Boyce, Solicitor.

Summary of report: This is the final report dealing with constitutional changes 
relating to the Planning Panel and Licensing Committee. It 
proposes the adoption of two protocols, one relating to 
Planning Panel site visits and the other relating to general 
issues arising from the Planning Panel and Licensing 
Committee as regulatory committees. Members are being 
asked to endorse the recommendations from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and Standards and Ethics Committee.

Recommendations: (a) That the recommendation to Council from the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to adopt the general 
protocol for Licensing Committee and Planning Panel 
members, shown as Appendix A to the report, be 
endorsed and the protocol approved; and

(b) That the recommendation to Council from the 
Standards and Ethics Committee to adopt the site visits 
protocol for Planning Panel members, shown as 
Appendix B to the report, be endorsed and the 
protocol approved.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Members will recall that constitutional changes to the Planning Panel were first 
recommended to Council in June 2019. Members, for a variety of reasons, were 
unhappy with the proposals and requested the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(‘OSC’) to examine the proposals in details. The OSC divided the work into two parts.

1.2 Firstly, it considered the delegation of planning matters to the Planning Panel and 
officers and also matters relating to site visits. The OSC made recommendations to 
Council in September. Council accepted the changes relating to delegation but 
remained unhappy with the proposals relating to site visits and Council referred the 
issue of site visits to the Standards and Ethics Committee. 

Page 105

Agenda Item 13



1.3 Secondly the OSC was required to review the proposed general protocol for Planning 
Panel members. The Committee appointed a task and finish group to consider the 
protocol which reported back to the Committee on the 21st November. 

1.4 Both the Standards and Ethic Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee now 
make recommendations on both outstanding matters to Council.

2.0 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – GENERAL PROTOCOL

2.1 This protocol dealt with issues of attendance at meetings, training, expectations, 
decision making, communications and declarations of interests. At the task and finish 
group the solicitor presented a suggested revised protocol which extended it to 
include Licensing Committee matters. Both the Panel and Committee deal with 
regulatory matters and work to formal procedures with its members having similar 
roles. The task and finish group made some amendments to the revised protocol and 
recommended it to OSC. OSC accepted the proposed protocol and now recommend 
it to Council for approval.

2.2 The proposed protocol is attached as Appendix A to this report.

2.3 In summary, the protocol makes the following points:

(A)   Attendance – members should make every effort to attend meetings. 
Low attendance gives the wrong impression and could result in meetings 
being cancelled if, on the rare occasion, they are inquorate. Equally however, 
members may experience times when they experience difficulties in being 
able to attend all meetings and site visits. The protocol requires members to 
give apologies at least a day in advance – this will allow Democratic Services 
to identify likely inquorate meetings so that they can be rearranged. If a 
member fails to attend a site visit or a Planning Panel meeting where a 
minded to refuse decision is made the member will need to ‘catch-up’. If a 
member experiences continuing (more than 3 site visits and/or meetings) 
then they should raise it with their group leader (or if an independent 
member with the Democratic Services Manager) so that consideration can be 
given to the member being replaced on the respective Committee either 
temporarily or permanently depending on the difficulty. If the member does 
nothing to try and resolve the issue then the matter may be referred to the 
Standards and Ethic Committee who could propose to Council that the 
member is replaced.

(B)   Training – members must be trained before they take part and training will 
be organised. If the member is unavailable officers will endeavour to provide 
alternative training. Members will be expected to attend refresher annual 
training of three hours with Planning Panel members attending an additional 
annual Planning Quality Review. 

(C)  Expectations – members must be familiar with law and guidance relating to 

Page 106



their respective functions and must ensure agenda reports are read prior to 
the meeting.

(D)   Decision making – in respect of Planning Panel decisions if members disagree 
with an officer recommendation then they should be prepared to put 
forward reasons, in planning terms, for doing so, Members will be supported 
in this role and must, if required, be willing to give evidence in any appeal. In 
respect of the Licensing Committee attendance in an appeal is likely to be 
restricted to the chairman.

(E)    Communications – member should refrain from making comments to the 
media during the decision making process.

(F)   Declarations of interest – members should remain impartial at all times. If a 
member is a close friend of an applicant or objector advice should be sought 
from officers on whether s/he should participate in the decision making.

3.0 STANDARDS AND ETHICS COMMITTEE – SITE VISITS PROTOCOL

3.1  This protocol deals exclusively with site visits, only relates to the Planning Panel, and 
is attached as Appendix B to this report.

 
3.2  In summary, the protocol makes the following points:

(a)  Either the Panel or officers can request a site visit which will take place on the 
morning of a Panel meeting or, if it is a large application, on a date and time 
at which most, preferably all, members can attend.

(b)  County councillor(s), representatives of a parish council and the borough 
ward councillor(s) can attend a site visit along the with the applicant.

(c)   At a site visit officers will make a brief presentation about the site and the 
setting of the proposed development on the site. The borough ward 
councillor will then be asked if they wish any points to be clarified. Members 
of the Panel may ask questions. Other elected representatives and the 
applicant will not, as a general rule, be permitted to speak as that right is 
reserved to the Planning Panel meeting.

(d)   If a member is absent from a site visit s/he should try and ‘catch up’ and  
should seek advice from the Planning and Place Manager on how to do so.

4.0   RECOMMENDATIONS

Both Committees recommend acceptance of the respective protocols to Council and 
Council is now asked to endorse them.

Page 107



5.0 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

5.1 Legal/Monitoring Officer comments: Legal issues previously raised concerning 
appearance of bias have now been addressed as parish councillors will continue to 
be invited to site visits along with the applicant. No other legal issues arise.

5.2 Section 151 Officer comments: No financial issues arise from the protocols.

5.3 Policy framework/other comments: None.

Appendices:

A.   Proposed general protocol.
B. Proposed site visit protocol.

Page 108



Appendix A

PROTOCOL FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE AND PLANNING PANEL MEMBERS

The Licensing Committee and Planning Panel are regulatory committees dealing with 
quasi-judicial matters with rights of appeal in both cases to the courts and in respect of 
the Planning Panel, the Secretary of State also.

It is important that the integrity of the Licensing Committee and Planning Panel (“the 
Committees”) are upheld at all times and that members are professional and competent 
when determining applications before the Committees. This protocol seeks to assist and 
support members of the Committee in undertaking their role as a member of such.

Members are reminded that this protocol is in addition to the Council`s Code of Conduct 
as set out in the Council`s Constitution which applies to all members. 

A. ATTENDANCE 

When considering applications it is important that members making a decision have heard 
all the evidence. It is inappropriate for members to only participate in part of a hearing – it is 
either all or nothing. If a member is absent from part they need to ‘catch up’. The following 
rules should assist members:

1.  If a member is on a Committee they should make every effort to attend. This is 
particularly so in respect of Licensing Sub-Committee where, by statute, comprise of 
three members and cannot sit unless all three are present. A low attendance at 
other committees can give the wrong impression. If a member cannot attend they 
must give their apologies as soon as possible and at least one day before the 
meeting. This will allow a meeting to be reconvened if it is unlikely to be quorate.

2. Failure to attend a site visit will remove Members’ rights to take part in the debate 
on that particular application at the relevant Committee unless they can ‘catch up’.  
Whether they can do so depends upon the circumstances of the site visit. It will not 
usually be possible to catch up if it was, for example, a site visit by a Licensing Sub-
Committee late at night to licensed premises and nearby resident properties 
accompanied by the police and/or fire service considering issues privy to that time of  
night e.g. noise or anti-social behaviour allegedly constituting public nuisance. Those 
circumstances cannot be replicated at other hours. Likewise a site visit of the 
Planning Panel at which highway or other experts are providing advice might not be 
capable of being replicated. However a site visit simply looking at the topography of 
the area might be capable of being replicated by an additional site visit with officers. 
Each case depends on its own circumstances but members, if they are unable to 
attend a site visit, must be prepared, if so advised, not to participate in the full 
hearing before the Committee.

3. Members should ensure that they sign the respective site visit register of attendance 
and committee meeting register of attendance. Members are reminded that 
attendance figures are a matter of public record. 

Page 109



4. Members willing to be appointed to the Committees must appreciate that the task 
can be demanding and that there can be, particularly in respect of the Planning 
Panel, a large number of meetings to attend. Members who feel that they may have 
difficulty in attending meetings regularly should, if they are a member of a political 
group, discuss the matter with their Group Leader. If independent they can raise the 
issue with the Democratic Services Manager. After consideration of the matter this 
might lead to the Group Leader perhaps proposing to Council that the member is 
replaced by another member from the same group either temporarily or on a 
permanent basis or if an independent member s/he proposing that another 
independent member replaces him or her. If there is continued absence (more than 
three site visits or meetings in a row) without any discussion by the absent member 
with the relevant Leader or with the Democratic Services Manager then  the 
Democratic Services Manager will raise the issue with the member and if applicable, 
his/her Group Leader to try and and resolve the matter. If there is no acceptable 
reason for, or resolution to, the continuing absence then the Monitoring Officer may 
refer the matter to the Standards and Ethics Committee for consideration who may, 
after hearing from the member, make a recommendation to Council about 
replacement. 

B.  TRAINING 

Training is a vital part of being a member of this Council and its committees and all 
members are expected to be proficient in carrying out his/her duties. In respect of the  
Committees it is essential that members are adequately informed to make decisions. 

1. Members must attend any organised mandatory training before they are allowed to 
take part in any meeting. This will be organised within three months of a member 
taking office on the Committee. . If a member cannot attend the organised training 
then officers will endeavour to arrange alternative training but this cannot be 
guaranteed.

2. Members must also attend any other relevant training that is organised specifically 
for Committee members. This is likely to consist of a minimum of 3 hours` training 
per calendar year and be by way of refresher and updating courses. 

3. In respect of the Planning Panel members must attend the annual Planning Panel 
Quality Review which forms part of their mandatory training.

C.  EXPECTATIONS 

1. Members must be familiar with relevant changes to legislation, government 
guidance and Council policies relating to the relevant Committee’s functions. It is a 
members’ personal responsibility to ensure that they are familiar with such 
documents. In respect of planning this will include the Council`s adopted Local Plan 

Page 110



policies and also Government guidance as set out in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. In respect of licensing it will include the Government guidance issued for 
Licensing Act and Gambling Act functions and the Council’s adopted statements of 
licensing policies for such functions. 

2. Members will be provided with a copy of these documents as part of their 
mandatory training. It is essential that members are familiar with the context of 
those documents as Officers’ reports included on the agenda for each meeting will 
only list the policies relevant to any particular case but will not provide full details of 
their content. 

3. Members must read the reports included on the agenda before attending a 
Committee meeting. The relevant application files are available to view on request. 
Members should refer any questions or queries they may have with regards to any 
report included on the agenda to officers before the meeting so far as is practical. 
There is significant media interest in these Committee and members should note 
that any comments or questions they raise at the Committees can legitimately be 
reported by the media. 

4. The onus is on members to ensure that they have all the information that they 
require in order to make an informed decision on any particular application before 
the Committees.

  

D.  DECISION MAKING 

Planning Panel

Members must recognise that legislation requires that where the Development Plan is 
relevant, decisions should be taken in accordance with it unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

1. Applications will be reported to the Planning Panel in accordance with the Scheme of 
Delegation as set out in the Council`s Constitution. 

2. If any member specifically wants an application to be reported to the Planning Panel 
for consideration then they should set out their reason for the request either via an 
email or in writing to the Planning Development Manager within 21 days of the 
application appearing on the Weekly List of Planning Applications received in 
accordance with the Call In Procedure as set out in the Council`s Constitution. 

3. When the Panel is minded to refuse or approve a planning application contrary to 
Planning Officer recommendation, a final decision shall be deferred until the 
following meeting to allow officers the opportunity to fully consider the reasons put 
forward. If members miss the initial Planning Panel meeting then they must listen to 
a recording of that meeting and sign a declaration that they have listened fully to the 
recording to enable them to vote at the following meeting as the debate will not be 
repeated. If members have not signed the declaration then they cannot take part in 

Page 111



any debate or vote on that particular application. This is to avoid the risk of an 
absent member making a decision when not in possession of all of the evidence 
whether it be through a site visit or hearing before the Planning Panel.

4. If Members wish to make a decision contrary to the Planning Officer`s 
recommendation then they must be able to provide clear and convincing reasons 
and should be prepared to explain in full their reasons for not agreeing with the 
Officer recommendation at the Planning Panel meeting. Members will be supported 
through this role by, insofar as is appropriate, independent consultants or other 
advisers.

5. Members must be prepared if necessary to represent the Council at any appeal on 
decisions taken against an Officer recommendation. This is likely to be at an inquiry 
held by the Secretary of State/Planning Inspectorate. Members will again be 
supported through this role.

Licensing Committee/Sub-Committees

1. Applications will be reported to the Licensing Committee in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation as set out in the Council`s Constitution and in the relevant 
statutory hearings regulations for Licensing Act and Gambling Act matters.

2. The statutory hearing regulations set out a detailed procedure which will be 
followed in respect of applications under the Licensing and Gambling Acts and 
officers will ensure that these are followed. Taxi applications have their own 
procedure and officers will ensure that procedures are followed.

3. Members must be prepared if necessary to represent the Council at any appeal on 
decisions taken by the Committee/Sub-Committee. This is likely to be restricted to 
the chairman of such and likely to be within the Magistrates’ / Crown Courts. 
Members will be supported through this role.

E.  COMMUNICATIONS 

Members of the Committees should refrain from making any personal comments on 
any decision before or after the meeting to ensure the integrity of the decision 
making process. This includes in person, in the press and on social media. Any 
comments made by Members’ which bring the Council into disrepute will be dealt 
with as a breach under the Council`s Code of Conduct policy. 

F.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

1. Members shall follow the guidance set out in the Council`s Constitution in deciding 
whether they have any personal and/or pecuniary interest in respect of a particular 

Page 112



application that they are involved in deciding. If they declare a pecuniary interest 
they cannot participate in the discussion on this item and must leave the meeting 
until such time as they are asked to return. Members should arrive at the meeting 
with a clearly defined list of interests they intend to declare. Advice can be sought 
prior to the meeting on whether an issue needs to be declared. 

2.  Members must remain impartial and be able to make decisions without any pre- 
determination or bias. This is wider than pecuniary interests. It can mean that a 
member should not participate in decision making if h/she is a friend of an applicant 
or of an objector. The test is whether participating can give the appearance of bias to 
a reasonable observer. Further advice can be sought from officers prior to a meeting. 
In respect of Licensing Sub-Committee applications, members are asked to discuss 
this matter with the Solicitor prior to the date of the hearing if they know the 
applicant or an objector to an application. As stated above Sub-Committees run with 
only three members by law (no more, no less) and the prior identification of an 
interest or close relationship will allow another member from the Licensing 
Committee to step in.

Date approved and effective from [ ] 2019

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL – PLANNING PANEL

PROTOCOL FOR SITE VISITS

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Members of the Planning Panel may wish to visit the site of a planning application 

they will be determining so that they have a better understanding of the effects an 

application may have on an area.

1.2 Planning Panel members are sometimes required to inspect a site to gain a greater 

understanding of the impact of the proposed scheme and the site’s location, physical 

characteristics and relationship to neighbouring properties or land use. This helps 

them when making a formal decision on a planning application. This protocol sets 

out the normal practice for the arrangement and conduct of formal site visits by the 

Planning Panel.

2.  REQUESTS FOR SITE VISITS

A site inspection will result from any one of the following:

(a) The Planning and Place Manager or, in his absence, the Chief Executive, 

requires one in the interests of proper decision making; or

(b) The Planning Panel calls for a site visit.

3.  CONDUCT OF SITE VISITS

Purpose

3.1 Site visits are solely for the purpose of viewing the site, to understand its location 

and the immediate environment to enable the development proposal to put into 

context, and, to enable Planning Panel to discuss the facts of the application.

Timing

3.2 Site visits will normally be held on the morning of a Planning Panel meeting at a time 

arranged by the Planning and Place Manager in consultation with the Chair of the 

Panel. For large scale developments the Planning and Places Manager will liaise with 

Page 115



all Panel members to find a mutually convenient date and time to ensure that all 

members are able to attend the site visit.

Lead

3.3 Site visits will be led by the Planning and Place Manager and/or the relevant case 

officer and the Chair. A summary of the protocol will be read out at the beginning of 

the site visit.

Right of other elected representatives to attend a site visit

3.4  On occasion, officers of other authorities or statutory bodies may be invited (by the 

Planning and Place Manager to attend a site visit to clarify factual matters (for 

example Cumbria County Council as the local highway authority or Environment 

Agency).

3.5 Other elected representatives representing the area in which the application relates 

and being the county councillor(s) and representative of the relevant parish council 

together with the relevant borough ward councillor(s) will also be invited to attend.

3.6 Where other elected representatives have been invited to attend, the applicant 

and/or any agent will also be invited to attend the site visit. 

3.7 A copy of this protocol will be issued to all those invited to attend the site visit.

Procedure at a site visit

3.8 No decisions will be made at the site visit by the Panel and the Chair will make this 

clear at the beginning of the visit.

3.9 Officers will give a brief presentation on the site, the setting of the proposed 

development and the specific reasons why the Panel / officers requested a site 

inspection. They will also advise whether the applicant or objectors have requested 

that the Panel views the site from other locations and how that is to be dealt with.

3.10 Following the officer presentation the borough ward councillor(s) will be asked 

whether s/he or they has/have any points which they wish to be clarified. Ward 

councillors will refrain from debating or commenting on the planning merits or 

otherwise of the proposal. Ward councillors will, on making a request in accordance 

Page 116



with the adopted public speaking procedure, be permitted to make representations 

at the relevant meeting on the Planning Panel. 

3.11 Members of the Panel may ask officers questions about the application. If an officer 

is unable to answer the question the applicant may assist, through the Chair, by 

providing factual details about the proposal or if the question relates to the nature 

of, or history, of the site by the ward councillor(s).

3.12 The county councillor and parish council representatives and the applicant/agent 

(other than as permitted by paragraph 3.11) will not, as a rule, be permitted to speak 

at the site visit. Where comment is made by one (a representative or the 

applicant/agent outside the scope permitted by paragraph 3.11) the other will be 

given an opportunity to respond if necessary. The site visit is aimed at assisting those 

councillor as representatives of the area, with understanding the application. Their 

right to speak, along with that of the applicant, about the application, is reserved to 

the Planning Panel meeting as an objector or supporter of the application in 

accordance with the adopted public speaking procedure and upon request to so 

speak. 

3.13 If members require further information or clarification of any aspect of the 

development the officers attending the site visit will be asked to ensure that such 

information is available by the time the application is considered by members at the 

relevant Planning Panel meeting.

3.14 The Chair will seek confirmation that members are satisfied they have seen 

everything they need to make a decision and will draw the site inspection to a close. 

No indication of the views of members or the likely outcome of the Planning Panel’s 

deliberations on the application will be given. To do so might imply that a member’s 

mind is already made up.

3.15 Members of the Panel should politely avoid engaging in private conversations with 

applicants, agents or the other elected representatives as this can give the wrong 

impression to others present or anyone observing the site visit.

3.16 At no point during the site visit will debate or comment on the planning merits or 

otherwise of the proposal be permitted, as the proper time for such debate / 

comment is at the relevant meeting of the Planning Panel.

Page 117



3.17 The Council is under no obligation to hold a site visit and the right of any person to 

speak is at the Chair’s discretion. There is no right to enter onto private land without 

the permission of the landowner. Where appropriate, officers will obtain permission 

from the landowner for those invited to attend the site visit to enter the land. If 

permission is not given to members and officers and other representatives to enter, 

the site will be viewed from the public highway. Parish and county councillors 

attending a site visit are expected to have their own insurance in place covering their 

attendance at such site visits as this Council’s insurance policy will not extend to 

them.

3.18 If a site visit becomes disorganised the Chair may withdraw Panel members at any 

time.

Recording of site visit

3.19 For the purposes of factual record, attendance at a site visit will be recorded by the 

lead officer including the locations visited.

3.20 As the purpose of the visit is not to debate but simply to establish facts about the 

site and its surroundings, no formal notes of a site visit will usually be recorded other 

than the attendance and locations visited as noted above. 

4. ABSENT MEMBERS

4.1 All members of the Planning Panel should use best endeavours to attend a site visit.

4.2 It is inevitable that absences will occur. Attention is drawn to the members’ protocol 

on planning and licensing matters (part A: Attendance) which deals with how such 

absence should be dealt with. The requirements on failure to attend more than 

three consecutive meetings together with the requirement to ‘catch up’ apply to site 

visits in the same manner as they apply to meetings.

4.3 In respect of ‘catching up’ a member who cannot attend a site visit should seek 

advice from the Planning and Place Manager well in advance of the meeting to 

determine how best that may be achieved. This will depend on the nature of the 

development, the particular geography of the area and whether expert advice (e.g. 

highways / Environment Agency) is to be received at the site visit. If a member is 

Page 118



unable to ‘catch-up’ s/he must be guided by the said Manager and in the right 

circumstances be prepared not to participate in the actual hearing of the application.

[Date approved and effective from: ]

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 121

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Ordinary meeting held on 9 September 2019 and the Special meetings held on 30 September 2019 & 19 November 2019
	$$Minutes 300919
	$$Minutes 191119

	8 Mayor's Executive Report
	December Executive Report Appendix A

	9 Report of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	10 Amendments to Committee memberships and Outside Bodies
	11 Update on Copeland Borough Council's Development of a Business Case for Whitehaven Against the Future High Streets Fund
	App A Whitehaven FHSF Summary Brochure
	App B 191001 S31 Grant letter MHCLG

	12 Corporate Strategy 2020-2024
	Appendix A- DRAFT 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy - (Council 161219)
	Appendix B- Social Inclusion Checklist on 2020 - 2024 Corporate Strategy
	Appendix C-Equalities Impact Assessment on draft 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy

	13 Planning Panel and Licensing Committee Protocol
	App A General Protocol for Planning and Licensing members - v3 with first round TFG amendments - 12.11.19
	App B Protocol for site visits - 12.11.19 with SEC amendments

	14 The Copeland Centre Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Scheme
	Appendix A Business Case (with appendices)


